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LLF B0 - Approval of Financial Statements 2025

The following Is a company announcemant issued by Luxury Living Finance p.l.c. (the
“Company”) pursuant to Prospects MTF Rules, the market regulated as a multi-tateral
trading facility operated by the Malta Stock Exchange (*Prospects MTF").

QUOTE

Reference is made to an announcement made by the Company dated 20 October 2025
(Ref. LLF 78) in which it was stated that the Board of Directors of the Company and
Guarantorwere scheduled to meet today, 31 October 2025, in order t9:

1. Consider and approva the Audited Financial Statemants of the Company and of
Luxury Living Technologies Limited, the Guarantor for the financial year ended 30
lune 2025; and

2. Consider tha declaration of a final dividend to be recommended to the annual
general meeting.

The Board of Directors of the Company and the Guarantor approved the Annual Report
and Financial Statements for the financial yvear ended 30 June 2025, The Board of
Diractors did not recommeand the paymeant of a final dividend.

The Board of Directors has also authorised the publication of the Annual Report and
Financial Statements and the Guarantor for the financial vear ended 30 June 2025 which
is avallable tor viewing on the Company's wabsite at bitps:/fvenslit-finance.com.

The Company’s and Guarantor's annual general meeting was held today, in which:

1. The annual accounts and reports of the directors and auditors for tha year ended
30 June 2025 of the Company and the Guarantor were approved; and

2. RV Audit Limited were appointed as the Company's and Guarantor's auditors
until the conclusion of tha next general meeting; and
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The current directors were reappointed up to the next annual general meeting in
accordancea with the Company's ang Guarantor's articles of association; and

4. Thashareholder took note of the recommandation of the Board of Directors that
no dividend be declared.

Furtharmore, the Board of Directors note that a variance resulted between 2025
projections that were published via company announcement LLF 72 on 31 October 2024,
and actual results registered for the financial year ending 30 June 2025, The variance is
principally due to the non-matarialisation of exports sales; lower revanue from the
hospitality sector because of having a number of rooms unavailabla for use following an
accident as a result of 8 building project et an adjacent property; some renewable energy
projects took longer 10 concluda,

Howaver, the results for the first quarter of this financial year, are showing a profit
compared to a loss for the same period last year.

Management is confident that this currant year, a profit will be registered.

UNQUOTE

DOr Paul DeBattista

Company Secretary

31 October 2045
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General information

Registration
Luxury Living Finance p.Lc. ks registered in Malta as a limited liability company under the Companies Act, 1995.
The company's registration number is C 85987,
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Directors’ report
For the vear ended 30 June 2025

The directors present their repart wogether with the audited financial statemants of the Company for the tweke
months ended 30 June 2035,

Princlpal Activities

The Company’s principal activity & to carry on the busineéss of a finance company, principally by advancing
capital raised to Luxury Living Technalogies Limited {the "parent company’), when and as reguired.

The {ompany b essentially 3 special purpose vehicle set up for financing transactions of Luxury Living
Technologies Limited. It raised such finance through an issue of bonds which is quoted on Prospects MTF and
guarantead by Lusury Living Technologies Limited, 1o whom proceeds from (15 issue has been advanced,

Performance Rewlaw

During the pericd under review, the Company generated finance income amounting €460,000 [FY2024:
£415, 800} from koan advanced to parent company. Interest expense on bonds amounted to €400, 000 [FY2024:
€400,000), The Company’s profit for the year amounted to €19 519 (FY2024; profit of €8,454].

The directors expect the present level of activity to be sustained in the foresesable future.
Position Review
The Company’s asset base amounted 1o as at 30 June 2025 €9,760,727 (FY2024: €3,165,408).

Nen-current assets relate to loan receivable from parent company amounting to €7,918,521 as at 30 June 2025
{FY2024: £7,918.521).

The Campany’s main [iabilities are made up of an €8,000,000 5% Secured Bonds redeemable in 2028,
Financial Risk Management

The Company's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks, including credit risk and ligukdity risk. These are
further analysed on Note 4 to these financial statements,

Principal risks and uncertainties associated with the Company

The Company's maln objective is that of a finance company for all companies within the Luxury Living Group
[‘the Group') which consist of Luxury Living Technologies Limited and its subsidiaries Luxury Living Finance polc.,
Luxury Living Technologies (Trading] Limited, Holstein Solar Farm Lid, Luxury Living Hospitality Limited, Luxury
Living Building and Construction Services Limited, Tal-Qampiena Solar Farm Umited, Luxury Living
Manufacturing Limited and Luxury Living Marketing and Distribution Limited. The Company s economically
dependent on the business prospects of the Group, As a result, the Company is dependent on the receipt of
income from the Group in relation to Bond proceeds which it has advanced in the form of a loan,
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Directors' report
For the year ended 30 June 2025

Principal risks and uncertainties associated with the Company {cont.}

The core business of the Group & principally operating in eco and renswable energy solutions in particular large-
scale installations of photovohalc units In a variety of domestic, industrial and agricultural locations, The Group
has also diversified Inta the manufacturing, import and distribution of foed and beverage products, and in tha
hospitality sector.

Since the economic activity commenced, rulas, laws and Government policies evolved. Despite these changes,
the Group has continued to evaluate new solar farm opportunities, successfully constructing and energizing
several projects during the period under review. In FY20325, the Group conducted 5 comprehensive assessment
of all its solar farms. Foblowing this detailed assessment, the Group is now recording increased electricity
generation, resulting in higher revenue,

Management continues to implement appropriate measures aimed at enhancing operational efficiencies and
overall output,

During FY2025, the Guarantor was unable to make the payments to the Company, resulting In the sinking fund
contribution not being made, However, following recent improvements in financial performance, the Guarantor
began making monthly payments to the Company starting in July 2025, directed toward the sinking fumd.

Dividends and Reserves

The retained earnings of the Company at the end of the year amounted to €102,880 (FY2024: €83,361). The
directors do nat recommend the distribution of a2 dividend and propase to transfer the profit for the year 1o
FESETVES,

Directors

The following have served as directors of the Company during the year under review:

rr, Jean Paul Busuttdl [Executive Director and Chairman] [Deceased on 29 June 2025)

hs. Sophie Ann Busuttil [Executive Director] [Appointed 4 July 2025]

Or. Paul Debaitista {Independent, Non-Executive Director and Chalrman]

hir. Anthony Coleiro (Independent, Non-Executive Director]

The Board meets on a regular basls to discuss performance, position and ather matiers.

On 29 June 2025, the Company lost the founder of the Group, Mr. lean Paul Busuttil. While his passing
represents & significant loss, his daughter, Ms. Sophie-Ann Busuttil, has stepped into his robe. Together with the

other twao directors, Ms. Busuttil has reaffirmed their commitment to carrying forward the founder’s vision and
executing the plans he set in motion,

Statement of Directors” Responsibliities
The Maltese Companies Act, (Cap 386) requires the directors to prepare financial statements for each financial
pariod which give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company at the end of the financial period

and of the profit or loss of the Company for that period.

In preparing the financial statements, the directars are required to:-
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Directors’ report
For the year ended 30 June 2025

Statement of Directors” Responsibilities {cont.)

»  adopt the going concern basis, unless it Is inappropriate to presume that the company will continue in
business as going concern;

® select suitable accounting policies and apply them consistently;

*  make judgment and estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances;

= account for income and charges relating to the accounting perlod on the accruals basis;

* value separately the components of asset and labdlity ivems; and
ensure that financial statements have been drawn up in accordance with Internatienal Financial
Reporting as adopted by the EU;

The directors are responsible for keeping proper accounting records which disclose reasonable accuracy, at any
tirme, the financial position of the Company and to enable the directors to ensure that the financial statements
have been properly prepared in accardance with the Maltese Companies Act, [Cap 386). The directors are also
responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Company and hence taking reasonable steps for the prevention
and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

The financial statements of Luxury Living Finance plc for the vear ended 30 June 2025 are included in the &nnual
Repart 2025, which is available on the Company's website, The Directors are responsible for the maintenance
and Integrity of the Annual Report on the website in wiew of their responsibility for the controls aver, and the
security of, the website. Access to information published on the Company's website & available in other
countries and Jurisdictions, where legislation governing the preparation and dissemination of financial
statements may differ from requirements or practice in Malta,

Events Subsequent to the Statement of Financial Position Date

On 3 September 2025 2n agreement with Mediterranean Aviation Company LUimited was reached and all
litigation proceedings and garnishee orders were withdrawn. The frozen funds are yet to be released and

received By the Group,

on 27 Ocraber 2025 an agreement was reached with the fand owners were Kafe Farm solar Farm is Installed,
Following this agreement, this farm will be energized and contributing to a substantial additional income going
foreard.

Future Developments

The directors intend 1o continue Lo operate in line with the current business plan.

fuditors

The auditers, RIV Audit Limited, have intimated their willingness to remaln In office and a resolution proposing
their reappointment will be put before the members at the annual generzl meeting.

Additional disclosures
Going Concern

After making enquiries and taking into consideration future plans, the directors have a reasonable expectation
that the Company has adeguate resources to continue in operating existence in the foresesable future. For this
reason, the directors continue 1o adopt the going concern basis in preparation financial statemeants.
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Directors’ report
For the year ended 30 June 2025

Share Capital Structure
The Company's authorised and issued share capital is €50,000 divided into 50,000 Ordinary Shares of £1 each.

The share capital consists of 49,999 Ordinary “A° Shares and 1 Ordinary Share ‘B, Ordinary "A’ grant one voting
right for every share held and are participating shares entitled received dividend distribution. Ordinary '8’
shares have no voting rights expect for the purpose of participating in the appolntment or election of directors,
Ordinary ‘8’ share are not entitled to recelve any divided distributions.

Holding in excess of 5% Share Capital

On the basis of infarmation available to the Company, as at 30 June 2025, Luxury Living Technologies Limited
held 49,999 shares in the Company which Is equivalent to 99.9559% shares of its total issued share capital,

There are no arrangemeants in place as at 30 June 2025, the operation of which may at a subsequent date result
in achange In control of the Company.

Appointment and removal of diréctors

appointment of directors shall be made at the Annwal General Meeting of the Company, The directors shall
hald office for a period of one year and are eligible for re-election. An election of the directors shall take place
every year at the Annual General Meeting of the Company.

Power of the Directors

The management and administration of the Company is vested in the Board of Directors, The powers of Board
members are contained in the Company's Articles of Association. There are no provisions in the Company’s
Memaorandum and Articles of Association regulating the retirement or non-retirement of directors over an age
limit.

Directors’ Interest

A% at 30 June 2025, non-Executive directors have no beneficial interest in the share capital of the Company. The
Executive Director, Mr. Jean Paul Busuttil, kad an indirect beneficial interest in the share capital of the Company
through his shares in Bag Investments Co. Ltd. and Sansuna Estates Co Limited. Following the appointment of
Ms. Sophie Ann Busuttil, she has an Indirect beneficial interest in the share capital of the Company through
ghares in Bag Investments Co. Ltd. and Sansuna Estates Co Limited.

Contracts with Board Members and Emplovess

The Company does not have service contracts with eny of its Board Members. All directors may be removed
from their posts of director by ordinary resolution of the shareholders in a general meeting.

Material Contracts

The Company entered inta a loan agreement with its parent Luxury Living Technologies Limited for the transfer
of funds received from the Bond issue. Details of such contract is set out in Note 12 to the financial statements.
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Directors’ report
For the year ended 30 June 2025

staternent by the Directors on the Financial Statements and Other Information included in the Annual Report

The directors declare that to the best of their knowledge, the financial statements included in the Annual Report
are prepared in accordance with the requirements of International Financial Reporting Standards o adopted
by the EU and give a true and fair view of the assets, linbilities, financial position and profit of the Company and
this report Includes a fair review of the development and performance of the business and position of the
Company, together with a description of the principal risks and uncertainties that it faces.

Signed an behalf of the board of directers on 31 October 2025 by:

——— _lslld)

M. Sophie Ann Busutth Dr, Paul Debattista
Directar Director
Registered Address:

Greentek Business Complex,

New Street in Trig il-Hofor,
Qarmi
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Corporate Governance = Statement of Compliance
For the year ended 30 June 2025

The Code adopted by the Company

The Prospects MTF Rules issued by the Malta Stock Exchange require qualifying companies admitted to
Prospects MTF to observe relevant corporate governance standards, in this case the Code of Principles of Good
Corporate Governance ["the Code”), accompanied by a report of the independent auditor,

The Board of Directors {the "Board" or the *Directors”] of Luxury Living Finance p.lc (the "Company”)
acknowledge that aithough the Code does not dictate or prescribe mandatory rules, compliance with the
principles of good corporate governance recommended in the Code ks In the best interests of the Company, its
shareholders and other stakeholders,

The Company's structure Is designed to meet the Company requirements and to ascertain that decision making
is subject to the checks and balances where this is appropriate.

Genearal

Good corporate governance ks the responsibility of the Board as a whole, and has been and remains a priority
for the Company. In deciding on the most appropriate manner in which ta implement the Code, the Board took
cognisance of the Company's size, nature and operations, and formulated the view that the adoption of certain
mechanisms and structures which may be suitable for companies with extensive operations may not be
appropriate for the Company. The limitations of size and scope of operations inevitably impact on the structures
reguired to implement the Code, without however diluting the effectiveness thereof,

The Board considers that, to the extent otherwise disclosed herein, the Company has generally been in
compliance with the Code throughout the yvear under review.

This Statement shall now sef out the structures and processes in place within the Company and how thase
effactively achieve the goals set out in the Code for the vear under review, For this purpose, this Statement will
make reference to the pertinent principles of the Code and then et outl the manner in which the Board
considers that these have been adhered to, and where it has not.

For the avoidance of doubt, reference in this Statement to compliance with the principles of the Code means
complipnce with the Code's maln princlples.

Compliance with the code

The Board of Directors {the Board™) of Company believe in the adoption of the Code and has endorsed it except
where the size and/or particular circumstances of the Company are deemed by the Board not to warrant the
implementation of specific recommendations. Accordingly, some of the provisions of the Code are not
applicable whilst others are applicable to a limited extent

Principle 1: The Company’'s Board of Dlrectors

The Directors report that for the financial year under review, the Directors have provided the necessary
leadership In the overall direction of the Company and have performed their responsibilivies for the efficient
and smooth running of the Company with honesty, competence and integrity. The Board Is composed of
members who are fit and proper to direct the business of the Company with honesty, competence and integrity.
Al the members of the Board are fully aware of, and conwversant with, the statutory and regulatory
requirements connected to the business of the Company, The Board is accountable for its performance and
that of its delegates to shareholders and other relevant stakeholders.
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Corporate Governance = Statement of Compliance
For the year ended 30 June 2025

Principle 1: The Company's Beard of Directors [cont.)

The Directors report that for the financial year under review, the Directors have provided the necessary
leadership in the overall direction of the Company and have performed their responsibilities for the efficient
and smooath running of the Company with honesty, competence and integrity. The Board & composed of
members who are fit and proper to direct the business of the Company with honesty, competence and integrity.
All the members of the Beard are fully aware of and conversant with, the statutory and regulatory
reguirements connected to the business of the Company. The Board is accountable for its performance and
that of itz delegates to shareholders and other relevant stakeholdars.

The activities of the Board are exercised in a manner designed to ensure that it can effectively supervise the
operations of the Company 5083 to protect the interests of the Bondholders, amongst other stakehalders. The
Board is also responsible for making relevant public announcements and for the Company’s compliance with
its continuing oblgatlens in terms of the Prospects MTF Rules.

The Company has a structure that ensures a mix of executive and non-executive directors and that enables the
Board to have direct information about the Company's performance and business activities.

All directars are requined 1o;

® gxgrcise prudent and effective controls which enable risk to be assessed and managed to achleve
continued prosperity to the company;

= be accountable for all actions of non-3ctions arising from discussion and actions taken by them or their
delegates;

= determing the Company’s strategic aims and the organisational structure;

+ regularly review management performance and ensure that the Company has the appropriate mix of
financial and human resources to meet its objectives and improve the economic and commercial
prosperity of the company;
acquire a broad knowledge of the Company;

Be aware of and be conversant with the statutory and regulatory requirements connected fo the
busingss of the company;

o Allocate sufficient time to perform their responsibilities;

¢ Regularly attend meetings of the board,

Principle 2: The Company’s Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Due to the size of the Company and the nature of its operations, the Company does not employ a Chief
Executive Officer ["CEQ"). This function is undertaken by the Executive Director.

The day to day running of the business is vested with the Executive Director of the Company,

The Chalrman exercices independent judgment and is responsible to lead the Board and set its agenda, whilst
also ensuring that the directors receive precise, timely and objective information 5o that they can take sound
decisions and effectively maniter the performance of the Company.

Principle 3: Compaosition of the Board

The Board is responsible for the overall lgng-term strategy and general policies of the Company, of monitoring
the Company’s syatems of control and financial reporting and communicating effectively with the market as
and when necessary,
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Corporate Governance — Statement of Compliance
Forthe year ended 30 June 2025

Principle 3: Composition of the Board (cont.)

The Board i composed of a mix of executive directors and non-executive directors, and considers that the size
of the Board, whilst not being too large as to be unwieldy, is appropriate, taking into account the size of the
Company, Its operations, s business risks and key performance indicators. The combined and varied
knowledge, experience and skills of the Board members provide a balance of competences that are reguired
and add value to the proper functioning of the Board and gives direction to the Company.

The board is compased as Tallows:

bAr Jean Paul Busuttl Executive Director and Chairman, date of demdse: 29 lune 2025

i Sophie Ann Busuttil Executive Directar, appointed 4 July 2025

Or. Paul Debattista Independent, Non-Executive Director and Chairman, appointed 25 April 2024
Mir. Anthony Coleiro Independent, Non-Executive Director, appointed 2 September 2024

All directors shall hold office from the general meeting at which thay are elected until the next annual general
meeting. All retiring directors are eligible for re-election.

Each independent non-executive Directar

a) Is not employed in any capacity with the Company,

b} Does not have a significant business relationship with the Companty;

¢} Did not receive significant additional remuneration from the Company;

d} Does not have close Family tles with any of the Company's executive Directors or senior employees;

e] Has not served on the Board for more than twebee consecutive years; or

f] Has not been within the last three years an engagement partner or a member of the audit team of the
present ar former external auditor of the Company

Each Director hereby declares that he undertakes to!
a) to maintain in all circemstances his independence of analysis, declsion and action;
b} nottoseek or accept any unreasonable advantages that could be considered as compromising his/her
independence; and
t} toclearly express his/her opposition in the event that he finds that a decision of the Board may harm

the Company

Each director is mindful of maintaining independence, professionalism and integrity in carrying out his duties,
responsibllities and providing judgment as a director of the Company.

Principle 4: The Responsibility of the Board

The Board acknowledges its statutory mandate to conduct the administration and managemeant of the
Company. The Board, in fulfilling this mandate and discharging its duty of stewardship of the Company, assumes
responsibility for the Company's strategy and decislons with respect to the issue, servicing and redemption of
its bonds in issue, and for monitoring that its operations are in conformity with its commitments towands
bandholders, shareholders, and all relevant laws and regulations. The Board is also responsible for ensuring
that the Company establishes and operates effective internal control and management information systems
and that It communicates effectively with the market,
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Corporate Governance — Statement of Compliance
For the year ended 30 June 2025

Principle 4: The Responsibility of the Board {cont.}

Systems and procedures are in place to control, monitor, réport and assess risks and thair financial implications.
Management accounts, budgets, strategic plans and prepared on a regular bask and are presented to the Board
ta menitor the pedformance of the Company on an ongoing basis.

in terms of the Prospects MTF Rules, the board has established an Audit Committee 1o monitor the Company's
present and future operations, threats and risks in the external environment and curreat and Tutere strengths
and weaknesses. The Audit Committee ensurés that the Company has the appropriate policies and procedures
in place 1o ensure that the Company and its employaes maintain the highest standards of corporate conduct,
including compliance with applicable laws, regulations, business and ethical standards. The Audit Committee
has a direct link to the Board and is represented by the Chalrman of the Audit Committee in all board meetings.

Principle 5: Board Meetings

Meetings of the Board are held as frequently 85 considered necessary. The board members are natified in
advance of forthcoming meetings by the Company Secretary with the isswe of an agenda and supporting
documents as necessary. Directors are entitled to seek independent professional advice at any time on any
aspect of their duties and responsibilities, at the Company's expense

During the financial year, & meetings were hald. The following Directors attended to Board meetings as follows:

Mr Jean Paul Busuttil Executive Director and Chairman b
mr Anthony Colziro Independent, Non-Exedulive Director B
Dr Paul Debattista Independent, Mon-Executive Director B

Principle B: Infermation and Professional Development

Due to its size the Company does not employ any employees. However, 35 part of succession planning and
employee retention of the Luxury Living Group (the Company and its parent Luxury Living Technologies
Limited], thie Board ensures that the Luxury Living Group Implements appropriate schemes to recruit, rétain
and motivate the employees.

Principle 7: Evaluatien of the Boards Performance

Under the present circumstances, the Board does not consider it necessary (o appoint a committes o carry aut
a performance evaluation of its role, & the Board's performance is always under the scruting of the

shareholders of the Company,

Principle 8: Committess
Principle 8A; Remuneration Committes

In view of the size and vpe of operation of the Company, the Board does not consider the Company 1o require
the setting up of a remuneration committee, and the Board itself carries out the functions of the remuneration
committee specified in, and in accordance with, Principle Eight A of the Code, given thet the remuneration of
the Directors is not performance-related,

Pursuant to the Company’s Articles of Asscciation, the maximum aggregate emeluments that may be paid to
directors are approved by the shareholder in a general meeting, Total remuneration of €28,000 was paid to
directors during the year under review.



LUXURY LIVING FINANCE P.L.C. Page 11

Corporate Governance — Statement of Compliance
For the year ended 30 June 2025

Principle &: Committees |cont.}

Principle 84: Remuneration Committes {cont.)

The remuneration of directors is a fixed amount per annum and does not include any variable component
relating Lo profit sharing, share options or pension benefits,

Principle 8B;: Nomination Committee

In view of the size and type of operation of the Company, the Board does not consider the Company to require
the setting up of a nomination committee. Reference is also made to the information provided under the
subheading 'Princlple 3* abowe, which provides for a formal and transparent procedure for the appointment of
new Directors to the Board.

Audit Committes

The Audit Committee’s primary objective is to assist the Board in fulfilling its responsibilities: in dealing with
issues of risk, contral and governance; and review the financial reporting processes, financial policies and
internal contrel structure, During the financial vear under review, the Audit Committee met six times,

Although the Auwdit Committee is set up at the level of the Company its main tasks are also related to the
activities of the Luxury Living Group.

The Board set formal rules of engagement and terms of reference of the Audit Committes that establish its
composition, role and function, the parameter of 1ts remit and the basis for the processes that it i required 1o
comply with. The Audit Committes, is & sub-committes of the respective board It ks directly responsible and
accountable to the respective board. The Boards reserves the right to change the Committee's terms of
reference from time 10 fime,

Briefly, the Audit Committees are expected to deal with and advise the Board on:

* its monitoring responsibility over the financial reponming processes, financial policies, internal contral
structures and audit of the annual and consolidated financial statements;

e maonitoring the performance of the entity borrowing funds (the Guarantor] from the Company;

= maintaining communications on such matters between the Board, management and the mdependent
auditars;

» facilitating the independence of the external audit process and addressing issues arising from the audi
process; and

*  preserving the lssuer's assets by understanding the Company's risk environment and determining how to
deal with those risks,

The Audit Committee alse has the role and function of considering and evaluating on an arm's length nature of
propeséd transactions to be antered into by the Company and & related party.

The Malta 5tock Exchange reviewed the Committee's Terms of Reference as part of the admission process with
respect o the Bonds issued by the Company.

Duiring the financlal period under review, the Awdit Committes met 2 times. The Avdit Commitles & compoased
of a mixture of executive and non-executive directors as follows:

Executive Director

bir Jean Paul Busuttil [date of demise 29 June 2025)
bz Sophie Ann Busuttll {appointed 4 July 2025])
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Corporate Governance — Statement of Compliance
For the year ended 30 June 2025

Audit Committes {cont.)
Mon-Executive Director

Or Paul DeBattista (Chairman of the Audit Commitiee] {2ppointed 25 April 2024)
Mr Anthony Coleiro (appointed 2 September 2024]

The Board considers the Chairman of the Audit Commitiee to be independent and competent in financial
knowledge.

#¢ stipulated in the terms of reference of the Audit Committee, the Chairman shall have a casting vote In the
case of deadiock.

The Directors believe that the current set-up is sufficient to enable the Company 1o fulfil the objective of the
Prospect MTF Rules' terms of reference in this regard.

{nrernal Control

The Board is ultimately responsible for the Company's system of internal controls and for reviewing its
affectiveness. The Directars are aware that internal control systems are designed to manage, rather than
aliminate, the risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and can enly provide reasonable, and not absolute,
assurance against normal business risks,

During the financial year under review the Company operated a system of internal controts which provided
reasonable assurance of effective and efficient operations covering all controls, including financial and
operational controls and compliance with laws and regulations. Processes are in place for identifying, evaluating
and managing the significant risks facing the Company.

Other key features of the system of internal control adopted by the Company in respect of its own inbernal
control as well as the control of its subsidiaries and affiliates are as follows:

Risk identificetion
The Board, with the assistance of the manzgement team, is responsible for the idenification and evaluation of

key risks applicable to the areas of business in which the Company and the Luxury Living Group are invokved.
These risks are assessed on a continual basis,

information and communication

Periodic strategic reviews which include consideration of long-term financial projections and the evaluation of
business alternatives are regularly convened by the Board. An annual budget is prepared and performance
against this plan is actively monitored and reported to the Board. In conclusion, the Board considers that the
Company has generally been in compliance with the Principles threughout the period under review as befits 3
company of this size and nature, Non-compliance with the principles and the reasons therefor have been
identified abowve.
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Corporate Governance — Statement of Compliance
For the year ended 30 June 2025

Principle 9: Relations with Shareholders and with the Market

The Company publishes annwal financial statements and when required company annsuncements, The Board
feels these provide the market with adequate information about its activities,

Principle 10: institutional Shareholders

The Directors are of the view that this Principle is not applicable to the Company since it doesn’t have any
institutional investors,

Principle 11: Confilct of Interest

Mr, lean Paul Busuttil was an Executive Director and had a direct beneficial interest in the share capital of the
Company [through various companies), Following his demise, Ms. Sophie Ann Busuttll was appainted as an
Executive Director and she is susceptible to conflicts arising between the potentially diverging interests of the
shareholders and the Cormpany. During the financial year under review, no private interests or duties unrefated
to the Company were disclosed by the Directors which were or could have been likely to place any of them in
conflict with any interests in, or duties towards, the Company,

The sudit Committes has the task to ensure that any potential conflicts of interest are resolved in the best
interests of the Company. Furthermore, in accordance with the provisions of article 145 of the Companies Act
[Cap. 386 of the Laws of Malta], every Director wha s in any way, whether directly or indirectly, interested in a
contract or proposed contract with the Company is under the duty to fully declare his interest in the relevant
transaction to the Board at the first possible opportunity and he will not be entitled to vole on matters relating
to the proposed transaction and only parties who do not have any conflict in considering the matter will
participate in the consideration of the proposed transactlon [unless the Board finds no objection to the
presance of such Director with conflict of interest).

Principle 12: Corporate Social Responsibility

The Company seeks to adhere to sound Principles of Corporate Social Responsibility In lis managemant
practices, and s committed to enhance the quality of life of all stakeholers and of the employees of the
Compamy and the Luxury Living Group.

The Board i mindful of the environment and its responsibility within the community in which il sperates.

In carrying on its business the Company is fully aware and at the forefront to presenving the environment and
continuously review its policies aimed at respecting the envirgnment and encouraging social responsibility and
accountability,
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Corporate Governance — Statement of Compliance
fur the year ended 30 June 2025

Approved by the Board on 31 October 2025 and signed on its behalf by:

B2

M4, Sophie Ann Busuttil Or. Paul Debattista
Director Director

Greentek Business Comphex,
Mew Street in Trig il-Hofor
Ciarmi

AAGLTA
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Independent auditor's report Page 15.

to the shareholders of Luxury Living Finance p.l.c.

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinien

W have audited the accompanying financial statements of Luxury Living Finance p.l.c., set out on pages 20
to 37 which comprise the statement of financial position as at 30 June 2025 and statement of changes in
equity, statement of comprehensive income and statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and a
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of
Luxury Living Finance p.l.c. as at 30 June 2025, and of its financial performance and its cash flows for the
year then ended In accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards {IFRSs] as adopted by the
EL} and have been properly prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act (Cap. 386).

Bazis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (I5As). OQur responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accardance with the International
Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’' Code of Ethics for Professlonal Accountants (IESBA Code) together
with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in accordance with
the Accountancy Profession (Code of Ethics for Warrant Holders) Directive issued in terms of the
Accountancy Profession Act [Cap. 281) in Malta, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these reguirements and the |ESBA Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have
abtained Is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinian,

Emphasis of Matter

Wa draw to attention to the section of Director's Report "Principal risks and uncertainties associated with
the Company”. This states that the parent company was unable to contribute €750,000 to the Compamy's
sinking fund for the financial year ending 30 June 2025 as was originally reguested. There were various
external factors for this matter to accur, which affected the performance of the Luxury Living Technologies
Limited and its subsidiaries {the "Group®), which, in turn, affected the Group's cash flows and its ability to
meat this obligation. Our opinion is not modified In this respect.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance In our
audit of the financial statements for the current year. These matters were addressed in the context of our
audit of the financial statements as a whaole; and in forming our opinion thereen, and we do nat provide a
separate opinion on those matiers.

Lompany Keg. Mo, L. 75065 Bankery: fank of Vallena plt
Wil Mo MTI3F39020 AN Mo 40024501707
Audll Firm Rig.Na, ABVI 17402 FRARE Mo MTISVALLIZON 000004002 4501 TEF

Sevift Cole: WALLATRAT
Currendgy: Euno
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to the shareholders of Luxury Living Finance p.l.c.

ey Audit Matters {cont.)

Recoverability of group bolances

Loan receivable includes funds advanced to parent company, whao is 2lso the guarantor of the bonds issued
by the Company. This loan amounted to Eur7,918,521 as at 30 June 2025 and carried an agreed rate of
interest of 5.25% per annum,

The recoverability of this [oan is assessed at the end of each financial year. This loan is the principal asset
of the Company and a5 such it is considered to be material.

How the scope of our eudit addressed the Key Audit Matter

We have reviewed the lpan agreement and agreed its terms to the loan balance included in these financial
statements. We reviewed that repayments are being made in line with this agreement. We have aiso
assessed the financial soundness of the parent company by making reference to its latest audited financial
statements and although the parent company incurred a loss for the year, the Board of Directors have taken
appropriate steps to ensure that, financial support will be forthcoming from the group to continue to
sustain the Company to meet its ohligations when these become due.

Findings
We concur with management's view that the intercompany loan is recoverable.

We have no other key audit matters to report with respect to our audit of the Company's financial
siaiements.

Other Information

The directors are responsible for the other infarmation. The other information comprises the Directors
Report. Qur apinion on the financial statements does not cover this information, and we do not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereen. In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our
responsibility Is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other infermation is
materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knewledge obtained in the awdit, or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated.

With respect 1o the Directors' Report, we also consider whether the Directors’ Report includes the
disclosures required by Article 177 of the Maltese Companles Act (Cap. 386). Based on the work we have
performed, in our opinion:
« The information given in the Directors’ Report for the financial year for which the financial
statements are prepared is consistent with the financial statements; and
= The Directars’ Repart has been prepared In accordance with the Maltese Companles Act (Cap. 386).

In addition, in light of the knowledge and understanding of the Company and its envirgnment gbiained in
the course of gur audit, we are raguired to report if we have identified matertal misstatements in the
Directors’ AReport. We have nothing to report in this regard.
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to the shareholders of Luxury Living Finance p.l.c.

Responsibilities of the Directors

The directors are respansible for the preparation of the financial statements that give a true and falr view
in accordance with RS, end for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.in preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the Company’s ability
to eontinue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Company of 1o cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our ehjectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
fres from material misstatement, whather due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that
includes our opinion, Reasonable assurance s a high level of assurance, butis not a guarantee thatan audit
conducted in accordance with 1SAs will ahways detect @ material misstatement when it exists,
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the econamic decisions of users taken on the basie of these
fimancial statemenis.

as part of an audit in accordance with 1SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
scepticism throughout the audit. We also

- identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial siaterments, whether due 10
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those ritks, and obtain audit
svidance that is sufficlent and appropriate to provide a basks for our opinion. The risk of not
getecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from errar,
as fraud may involve collusion, fargery, Intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override
af internal contral.

. Obtain an understanding of internal contro! relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but ngt for the purpose of expressing an
gpinion an the effectiveness of the Company’s intermal cantral,

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonablenass of accounting
estimates and refated disclosures made by the directors.

. Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting and
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related 1o events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue a5 & goiNg CONCern,
if we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's
report ta the related disclesures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinien, Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of
gur auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the company o cease 1o
continue 3% 3 going CoOnCern.
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to the shareholders of Luxury Living Finance p.l.c.
Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements fcont.)

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the finantial statements, inchuding the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in @ manner that achieves fair presentation, We communicate with the directors regarding, among
pther matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including
any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with 2 statement that we have complied with relevant
sthical reguirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all redationships and other
matters that may reasaonably be thought to bear on cur independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards,

Erom the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determing those matters that
were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore
the key audit matters, We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes
public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances we determine that a matter
should not be eommunicated in our report because the adverse consequences of daoing so would
reasonable be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Repart on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

Report on the Statement af Complionce with the Princlples of Good Corporote Governance
The Prospects MTF Rules issued by the Malta Stock Exchange require the directors to prepare and include
in their Annual Report a Statement of Compliance providing an explanation of the extent to which they
have adopied the Code of Principles of Good Corporate Governance and the effective measures that they
have taken to ensure compliance throughout the accounting period with those Principles.

The Prospects MTF Rules also require the awditor to include a report on the Statement of Compliance
prepared by the directors.

Wwe read the Statement of Compliance and cansider the implications for our report if we become aware aof
any apparent misstatements or material inconsistencies with the financial statements included in the
Annual Report. Our responsibilities do not extend to considering whether this statement |s consistent with
any other information included in this Annual Report.

we are not required 1o, and we do net, consider whether the Board's statements on internal control include
in the Statement of Compliance caver all risks and contrals, or form an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Campany's corporate governance procedures or it risk and control procedures.

In our opinion, the Statement of Compliance set out on pages 7 to 14 have been properly prepared in
accordance with the regquirements of the Prospect Rules issued by the Maita Stock Exchange.
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Independent auditor's report {cont. | Pape 19,
to the shareholders of Luxury Living Finance p.l.c.
Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements {cont.)
Other motters un which we are required to regort by exception
Wi alsn have responsibilites:
under the Maltese Companies Act {Cap. 3856) we are required to report to you if, in our opinion:
s We have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit.
« Adeguate accounting records have not been kept, or that réturns adequate for our audit have not
been received from branches not visited by ws.

& The financial statéments are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns.

under the Prospects MTF Rules to review the statement made by the directors that the Business is 2
going concern together with supporting assurmptions or qualifications as necessary.

We have nothing to report to you in respect of these responsibilities.

This of the audit report has been signed by

Raymond J Vella CPA
Direttor
RIV Audit Limited

\ 31 Qctober 2025
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Statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
For the year ended 30 June 2025

2025 2024
Mote Eur Eur
Finance income 5 450,000 415800
Finance costs B {400,000) {400,000}
Met Interast income 60,000 15,800
Administrative and other expenses {#1,530) [B7.346)
Management fae . 60,000
Other income 1,045 -
Profit before taxation 7 19,519 B,a54
Income tax expense B - .
Profit for the year 15,519 8,454
Total comprehensive income for the year 18,519 B 454
Earnings per share for the year attributable
to sharehalders 19,519 8,454
Earnings per share 0.38¢ 0.i7e

The occounting policies and explonorory notes on pages 24 1o 37 form en integral part of thesé financial
faremanti.
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Statement of financial position

As at 30 June 2025
2025 2024
Note Eur Evir
ASSETS
Mon-current assets
Loan receivable ) 7,918,521 7,818,521
Currant assets
Other receivables 14 1,718,975 1,249,277
Cash and cash equivalents 14 122,231 610
1,E42,206 1,249,887
Total assets o, 760,727 9,168,408
EQLITY
Capital and reserves
Share capital i1 50,000 50,000
Retaingd earnings 102,380 83,361
152,880 133,361
LIABILITIES
Mon-current liabilities
Borrowings 12 7,973,098 7.964,362
Current Habllities
Qther payables 13 1,632,941 1,068.877
Current tax Habilithes 1,808 1,808

1,634,743 1,070,685

Total equity and liabiities 5,760,727 9,168,408

The occounting policies and explonatory rotes on poges 24 to 37 farm an integral part af these financial
Statements,

The financial  statements  have been  approved by  the Board of Directors on
31 October 2025 and signed on its behalf by:

Mz, Sophie Ann Buswttil Dr. Paul DeBattista
Diirector Directar
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Statement of changes in equity
For the year ended 30 June 2025

Share Retained
capital earnings Total
Eur Eur Eur
For the year ended 30 June 2024
At 1 July 2023 50,000 14,907 124,507
Frofit for the financial year . B.454 8,454
At 30 June 2024 50,000 83,361 133361
For the year ended 30 June 2025
At 1 July 2024 50,000 £3.361 133,361
Prafit for the financial year - 19,519 19,519
At 30 June 2025 50,000 102,280 152.58B0

The eccounting policies ond explanptory notes on poges 24 1o 37 form an integral part of these finonciol
STOTEMEnIs.



LUXURY LIVING FINANCE P.L.C.

Statement of cash flows
For the year ended 30 June 2025

Page 23.

Cash flows from operating activitles:
Frofit befare taxation

Adjustments to reconcile grafit
befo f ko fl -
Amortlsation of bond issue costs
Finance income

Finance costs

Working capital adjustments:
Other receivables

Trade and othar payables

Cash generated from operations
Interest paid

Met cash flows uzed in fram operating activities

Net cash flows from financing activities:
Loan advanced byfto parent company
Advances from other related companies

Hore

LY ]

10
13

Met cash flows generated from/{used in) financing activities

Net increasefidecrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of vear

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year

14

2025
Eur

19,519

3,736
{460,000)
400,000

(10,698

41,660

(7E3)

(400,000

[400,783)

15,000
207404

511404

121,621
G100

122,231

e

2024
EuiT

8,454

B, 736
(415,200}
400,000

2,208
(42,049}

{38,453}

(400,000}
[438,453)

(22.373)
3401

(15.978)

{457,431}
458,041

B

The occounting policies and explanatory notes on poges 24 to 37 form on integral part af these financial

statemants,
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Maotes to the financial statements
For the year ended 30 June 2025

1.

Golng concern

The Campany's principal activity is 1o act a3 a finance Company. The Company itsell does not have
substantial assets and is a special purpose vehicle set to raise finance for the business of Luaury Living
Geoup. The Group was set wp to provide sco and renewable energy solutions which Is expacted to
generate income from the sale of domestic photovoltaic panels and feed-in-tariffs from the installation
of photovoltaic farms as well as operate within the hospitality industry through a guest house in 51,
Julian’s,

In preparing these financial statements, the Board of directors of the Company made reference to the
Group’s inceme streams given that the Company & dependent on the performance of the Group. Henice
reference was made to the continued sale of photoveltaic panels, further connection of photoveltaic
farms which in turn shall generate monthly feed-in-tariffs, manufacturing, marketing and distribution,
and the operation within the haspitality industry,

Despite the fact that the Group on 3 consolidated basis incurred a loss for the vear ended
10 June 2025, the Board of directors have taken appropriate steps to ensure that, financial support will
be forthcoming from the Group to continue to sustain the Company to meet |1z obligations when these
become due. As a result, we believe that it remains appropriate 1o prepare these financlal staternents on
# poing concern basis,

Basis of preparation

Basis of measurement
These financial statements are prepared on the historical eost basis,

The pregaration of financial statements in conformity with IFRS: requires management to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of policies and repored amounts of
assers and liabilivies, income and expenses,

The estimate and associabed assumptions are based on historical experience and various other factors
that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis of making
the judgements about carrying values of assets and Labilivies that are not readily apparent from other
sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an angoing basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognised in the vear in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects both current
and future years,

Functional and presentation currency
The financial statements are presented in eura (EUR) which is the Company's functional and presentation
CUTFENCY.
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Maotes to the financial statements

For the yvear ended 30 June 2025

summary of significant accounting policies

i} Financial assets

initial recagnition and measuremant

Financial assets within the scape of IFRS 9 are classified as financial agsets at fair value through profit or
loss, Inans and receivables, held-to-maturity investments, available-for-sale financial assets, or a3
derivatives designated as hedging instruments In an effective hedge, as appropriate. The Cempany
determines the classification of its financial assets at initial recognition,

Al financial agsets are recognised initialty at fair value plus transaction costs, except in the case of
financial assets recorded at fair value through profit or loss.

Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame established by
regulation ar convention in the market place {regular way trades) are recognised on the trade date, i.e.
the date that the company commits to purchase ar sell the asset.

The Company's financial assets include cash and shor-term deposits, trade and other receivables, quated
and unguoted financial instruments.

Subseguent meazuremént
The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on their classification as described below:

Financial assets at falr value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss includes financial assets held for trading and financial
assets designated upan initial recognition at fair value through profit or boss. Financial assets are classified
as held for trading If thay are acquired for the purpose of selling or repurchasing in the near term.
Derivatives, including separated embedded derivatives are also classified as held for trading unless they
are designated as effective hedging Instruments as defined by IFR5 3,

Financial assets at fair value through profit and loss are carried in the statement of financial position at
falr value with net changes in fair value recognised in finance costs in statement of eomprehensive

income.

Financial assets designated upan initial recognition at fair value through prafit and loss are designated at
their Initial recognition date and only i the criteria under IFRS 9 are satishied. The Company has not
designated any financial assets at fair value through profit or loss.

The Company evaluates its financizl assets held for trading, other than derivatives, to determine whether
the intention to sell them in the near term is still appropriate, When In rare circumstances the Company
is unable to trade these financial assets due to inactive markets and management's intention ta sell them
In the foreseeable future significantly changes, the Company may elect to reclassify these financial assets.
The reclassification to boans and receivables, available-for-sale or held to maturity depends on the nature
of the asset. This evaluation does not affect any financial assets designated at fair value through profit o
loss wsing the fair value option at designation, these instruments cannot be reclassified after Initial
recognition, Derivatives embedded in host contracts are accounted for as separate derivatives and
recarded at fair value if thelr economic characteristics and risks are not closely related to those of the
host contracts and the host contracts are not held for trading or designated at fair value though profit or
loss.
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Motes to the financial statements
For the year ended 30 June 2025

Summary of significant accounting pelicies [cont.)
i] Financial assets (cont.)

Financial instruments = initial recognition and subsequent measurement
Financial assets at fair value through profit or less {cont. )

These embedded derivatives are measured at fair value with changes in fair value recognised in the
statement of comprehensive income. Reassessment only ocours if there is a change in the terms of the
contract that significantly modifies the cash flows that would otherwise be reguired,

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assers with fixed or determinable payments that are
not quoted in an active market. After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the EIR method, less impairment, Amortised costis caloulated by taking
into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the
EIR. The EIR amartisation is included in finance income in the statement of comprehensive income, The
losses arising from impairment are recognised in the statemeant of comprehensive income in finance costs
for loans and in cost of sales or other operating expenses for receivables,

Derecognition

& fimancial asset [or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of 2 group of similar financial
assens) i derecognised when:

* The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired,

# The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an
obligation ta pay the réceived cash flows in full withour material detay 1o a third party under a "pass-
through” arrangement; and either {a) the Company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards
of the asset, of (B) the Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

When the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a
pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risks and rewards of
ownership, When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the ricks and rewards of the
asset, nor transferred control of the asset, the asset is recognised to the extent of the Company’s
continuing imeohrement in the asset. In that case, the Company also recognises an associated liability. The
transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and
obligations that the Company has retained,

Continuing involverment that takes the farm of a guarantee over The transferred asset & measured 2t the
lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the

Company could be required to repay.
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Maotes to the financial statements
For the year ended 30 June 2025

3.

summary of significant accounting policles [cont.}

Financial instruments — initlal recognition and subsequent measurement {cont. )

il} impairment of financial assets

The Company assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is any objective evidence that a financial
asset or a group of financial assets is impaired. A financial asset or a group of financial assets is deemed
to be impaired if, and anly i, there is objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or more events
that has occurred after the initial recognition of the asset [an incurred Toss event') and that loss event
has an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or the group of financial assets
that can be reliably estimated.

Evidence of impairment may include indications that the debtors ar a group of debtors is experigncing
significant finaneial difficulty, default or delinquency in interest or principal payments, the probability
that they will enter bankruptey or other financial reorganisation and when observable data indicate that
there s a measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows, such as changes in arrears or econamic
conditbans that corralate with defaults.

Financial assets carried at amortised cost

For financial assets carrled at amortised cost, the Company first assesses whether objective evidence of
impairment exists individually for financial assets that are individually significant, or collectively for
financial assets that are not individually significant. If the Company determines that no objective evidence
of impairment exists for an individually assessed financial asset, whether significant or not, it includes
the asset in & group of financial assets with similar eredit risk characteristics and collectively assesses
them far impairment, Assets that are Individually assessed for impalement and for which an impairmant
loss is, or continues to be, recognised are not included in a collective assessment of impairment.

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss has been incurred, the amount of the toss &
measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows {excluding future expected credit losses that have nat yet been incurred]. The present
value of the estimated future cash flows is discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest
rate. If a loan has a variable interest rate, the discount rate for measuring any impairment loss is the
current EIR.

The carrying amgunt of the asset is reduced through the use of an allowance account and the amount aof
the loss Is recognised in the statement of comprehensive income. Interest income continues to be
accrued on the reduced carrying amount and is accrued using the rate of interest used to discount the
future cash flows for the purpose of measuring the impairment boss

The interest income Is recorded 25 part of finance income in the statement of comprehensive income.
Loans together with the associated allowance are written off when thare is no realistic prospect of future
recovery and all collateral has been realised or has baen transferred 1o the Company.

If, in a subsegquent year, the amount of the estimated impairment less Increases or decreases becavse of
an event occurring after the impairment was recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss is
increased or reduced by adjusting the allowance account. If a future write-off is later recovered, the
recovery is credited to finance costs in the statement of comprehensive income.
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Motes to the financial statements
For the year ended 30 June 2025

3.

Summary of significant accounting policies {cont.)
Financial instruments — initial recognltion and subsequent measurement {cont. )
i} Fimancial liabllities

Initial recognition and measurament

Financial lizbilities within the scope of IFRS 9 are classified as financial liabilities at fair value through
profit ar loss, loans and borrowings, or a5 derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an effective
hedge, as appropriate. The Company determines the classification of its financial labilltes at nitial
recagnition.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of loans and borrowings,
directly artfibutable TransacTion COSTs

The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification as described below:

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss imclude financial liabilities held for trading and
financial iabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss.

Financial habilities are classified as held for trading if they are acquired for the purpose of selling in the
near term, This category includes derivative financial immstruments entered into, that are not designated
a5 hedging instruments in hedge relationships a5 defined by IFRS 9, Separated embedded derivatives are
also classified as held for trading unbess they are designated as effective hedging instruments.

Gains or losses on labllities held for trading are recognized in the statement of comprehensive income.,

Financial liabilivies designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit and loss so designated
at the initial date of recognition, and only if criteria of IFRS 9 are satisfied. The Company has not
deswnated any financial liability a5 at fair value through profit or loss,

Loans and borrowlngs
After initial recognition, interest bearmg koans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised

cost wsing the EIR method, Gains and losses are recognised in the statement of comprehensive incomea
wehen the habilities are derecognised as well as through the EIR amartisation process.

Amaortised cost is caloulated by taking Into account any discount or prémivm an acquisition and fees or
costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included in finance costs in the statement

of comprehensive income,

Derecagnition
& financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or
aupires,
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3

summary of significant accounting policies [cont.)
Fimancial Instruments = initlal recognition and subsequent measurement [cont.)

ili} Financial liabilities {cont.]

Derecognition (cont.]

When an existing financial ability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantizlby differant
terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or madification is
treated as the derecognition of the ariginal liability and the recognition of a new liability, The difference
in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of comprehensive income.

Iv] Offsetting of flnancial Instruments
Financial assets and financial Babilities are offset and the net amount reparted in the statement of
financial position if, and only if:

= There is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts; and
= There |5 an intention to setile on a net basis, or to reallse the assets and settle the Habilities

simultaneously,

v} Fair value of financial Instruments

The faif value of financial instruments that are traded in active markets at each reporting date Is
determined by reference to quoted market prices or dealer price quotations (bid price for long positions
and ask price for short positions), without any deduction for transaction costs. For financial instruments
not traded in an acthee market, the Talr value |5 determined using appropriate valuation technigues., Such
techniques may include:

® Lising recent arm's [ength market transactions
= Reference to the current fair value of another instrument that is substantially the same
= A discounted cash fiow analysis or other valuation models.

Other receivables

Other receivables are recognised and carried at original invoice amount less an allowance for any
uncollectible amounts. An estimate for doubtful debts 5 made when collection of the full amount is no
langer probable. Bad debts are written-off as incurred.

Cash and cash egquivalents
Cash in hand and at banks and shart-teem deposits which are held to maturity are carelad at cost

Cash and cash equivalents are defined as eash in hand, demand deposits and shart-term, highly liguid
investments readily convertible to known amounts of cash and subject to insignificant risk of changes in
value.

For the purposes of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash eqgubvalents consist of cash in hand and
deposits at banks.

Other payables
Liabilities for other amounts payable are carried at cost which is the fair value of the cénsideration fo be
paid in the future for goods and services recelved, whether or not billed to the Company.
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3.

Summary of significant accounting policies (cont.]

flevenue

Interest and other income

Interest and other income are recognised when the inflow of economic benefits associated with the
transaction is probable and the amount of income can be measured reliably, Interest income is accrued
on a time proportion basks.

Bank borrowings
Submequent to lnitlal recognition, interest bearing loans are measured at the amortised cost wsing the
effective interest method. Bank loans are carried at their face value due to their market rate of interest.

Subsequent to initial recognition, interest bearing bank overdrafts are carried a1 their face value dug 1o
thesir short term maturities.

Use of estimates and judgements

in preparing the financial statements, management & required to make jedpements, estimates and
assumptions that affect reported income, expenses, assets, Habilities and disclosure of contingent assets
and liabilities. Use of available information and application of judgement are inherent in the formation
of estimates. Actual results in the future could differ from such estimates and the differences may be
materizl to the financial statements. These estimates are reviewed on a regular basis and if 2 change is
needed, it is accounted for in the year the changes become known,

In the opinion of the management, the accounting estimates, assumptions and judgements made in the
course of pregaring these financial statements are not difficult, subjective or complex to a degree which
would warrant their description as critical in terms of the regquirements of 1AS 1 {revised) "Presentation
of financial statements’.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation [legal or constructive) as a result
of a past event, it is probable that an autflow of resources embodying ecanamic benefits will be reguired
o settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amgunt of the obligation, Where the
Company expects some or all of 3 provision 1o be reimbursed, for example under an nsurance contract,
the reimbursement & recognised as a separate asset but only when the reimbursement i virtually
certain, The expense relating 1o any provision s presented in the statement of comprehensive income
net afan-,- reimursement,

if the effect of the time value of money i material, provisions are discounted wsing a current pre-tax rate
that reflects, where appropriate, the risks specific to the lability. Where discounting is used, the increase
in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost.

Tanis

Current income tax

Current income tax assets and fiabilities for the current and pricr vears are measured at the amount
expected to be recovered from ar paid to the taxation authorities, The tax rates and tax laws used 1o
compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted by the statement of financial
position date.

Curfent income tax relating to items recognised directly In equity is recognised in equity and not in the
statement of comprehensive income,
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Summary of significant accounting policies [cont.]
Taxes (cont.)

Deferred tax

Deferred tax i provided using the statement of financial position liability method, providing for
temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for Bnancial reporting
purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes, The amount of deferred tax provided is based on
the expected manner of realisation or settlement of the carrying amount of assets and liabilities, using
tax rates enacted or substantially enacted at the reporting date.

A deferred tax asset is recognised only to the extent that it is probable that future taxabile profits will be
available against which the asset can be utilised. Defersed tax assets are reduced to the extent that it is
no longer probable that the related tax benefit will be realised.

Dividends
Dividends are recognised as labilities once they are no longer at the discretion of the Company.

Financial Risk Management

At the end of the period, the Company’s main financial assets comprised of a loan receivable from parent
company and cash held at bank. At the period end the Company’s main financial Habilities consisted of
borrowings and other payables.

The Campany constitutes a financing special purpose vehicle whose bonds are matched by equivalent
amounts due from, and guaranteed by, Lusury Living Technologies Limited [parent companyl.

The Company's principle risk exposures one related to credit visk and liguidity risk. The Company is not
exposed to currency risk and the Board of directors consider interest rate risk exposure o be minimal
die te matching of interest costs on borrowings with finance income from its loans and recefvables,

Timing af cash flows

The presentation of the above-mentioned financial assets and liabilities listed above under the current
and non-current headings within the statement of financial position is intended to indicate the timing in
which cash flows will arize.

Credit Risk

Financial assets which potentially subject the Company to concentrations of credit risk consist principally
af Inan receivables from parent company and cash and cash equivalents (notes 10 and 14, the carrying
amaunt of financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure.

The Company’s cash at bank is place with quality financial institutions. The Company's receivables consist
mainly of loan receivables from parent and accordingly credit risk In this respect is limited.
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4, Financlal Risk Management (cont.)

Liguidity Risk

The Company is exposed to bquidity risk in rélation 1o meeting future obligations associated with its
financial lizbilities, which compromise princigally interest-bearing borrowings and other payables refer
to Motes 12 and 13). The Company is exposed 1o liquidity risk arising from its ability to savsty liability
commitments depending on cash infliows receivable in turn from Luxury Living Technologies Limited.

Banagement monitors liguidity risk by means of cash flows forecasts on the basis of expected cash flows
over & twelve-month period to ensure that no additional financing facilities are expected to be required
over the coming year, This process is performed through a rigorous assessment of detalled cash flow
projections of the parent company where matching of cash inflows and outfiows arising from expected
maturities of financial instruments are assessed an an annual basis,

The carrying amounts of the Companmy's assets and liabilities are analysed into rebevant maturity
Eroupings based on the remaining pericd at the end of the reporting period to the contractual maturity
dates in the respective notes to the financial statemenis,

Copital Management

The Company's bonds are guaranteed by Lusury Living Technobogies Limited {the parent company].
Related finance costs are alse guaranteed by the parent company. The capital management of the
Campany therefore consists of a process of regularly monitoring the financial positions of the guarantor.

Faly Volues of Flnanelal Instruments

At 30 June 2025, the carrying amounts of receivabiles and payables are assumed vo approximate their fais
walues. The fair value of financial liabiltkes for disclosure purposes s estimated by discounting the future
contracted cash flows at the current market Iinterest rate that is available 1o the Company ar similar
financial instruments.

As at end of the reporting period, the fair values of financial assets and liabilities, approximated the
carrying amounts shown in the statement of financial position.

5. Finance Incame
2025 2024

Eur Eur

Interest recelvable on fong-term loan due from parent company 460,000 415 B00i
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B, Finance costs

2025 1024
EuUT Eur
interest payable on bonds 400,000 400,000
T Erofit before taxation
Thiz 15 stated after charging the following:
2025 2024
Eur Ewr
Annual statutory audit fees 2,500 2,500
Directors’ remuneration 1E,000 17,700
Amaortisation 8,738 8,716
. Ineame tax
income tax recognised in statement of profit or boss and comprehensive income:
2025 2024
Eur Eur
Current tax expenssa -

The tax charge and the result of accounting profit multiplied by statutary incame tax rate are réconciled

a5 follows:
2025 1024
Eur Eur
Profit before taxation 159,519 E454
Tax at the applicable statutory rate of 35% (6,831} {2,959]
Tax effect for:

Group losses claimed 6,831 P LA
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10,

11,

Loan recelvable

2025 2024
Eur Eur

MNon-current
Loan receivable from parent company [note) 7,918,521 1,918,521

Mote; The loan receivable relates to the teansfer of funds 1o parent company, generated by the Company
from the lssue of bonds. The loan 5 unsecured, carries interest at 5.25% per annum (2024: 5.25% per
annum) and ks repayable in full by not later than 30 lune 2028,

2025 2034
Ewr Euer

saturity of loans and recewables:
Within £ and 5 years T1.918,521 1918521
Qver 5 years - -

7,918,521 £.91E.521
Other recelvables
2025 2024
Eur Eur
Accrued income 1,715,800 1,37 400
VAT recevable 4,175 LET?
1,719,975 1,249.277
Share capital
2025 2024
Eur Eur
Authorised, issued and fully paid up:
49,599 Ordinary "A’ shares of Eurl each 49,093 45,9495
1 Drdimnary “B° share of Eurl 1 1

50,000 50,000
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1. Borrowings
Non-currenf Lobilities 2025 2024

Eur Eur

Bonds sutstanding (face value] 8,000,000 B,000,000
A,000,000 5% Secured Bonds 2028 [opening) 7,964,362 7.955,626
Amaortisation charge for the year 8735 8.736
8,000,000 5% Secured Bonds 2028 (closing] 7,973,098 7,564,362
Gross amount of bond issue costs (87,275) (87375}
Amartisation brought forward 51,738 43,002
Amartisation charge for the year B, 738 8,736
Amartisation carrigd forward 60,474 51,738
Unamortised bond issue costs [26,501) (35,627}

Interest on the 5% Secured Bonds 2028 is pavable annually in arrears, on 29 July of each yaar

The Secured Bonds shall constitube the general, direct and uncanditional abligations of the Issuer, and
shall at all times rank pari passu, without any prigrity or preference ameong themselves, The Secured
Bonds shall be guaraateed in respect of both the interest and the principal amount due under $aid
Secured Bonds by the Guarantor in terms of the Guarantee, The Secured Bonds shall rank with priority

in relation to the Pledged Shares.

Pursuant to the Pledge Agreement, the Pledgor has agreed to constitute in favour of the Security Trustee
for the benefit of Bondholdars as Beneficlaries, 3@ pledpe owver the shares held in Luxury Living

Technalogies Limited.

The Pledge will secure the claim of the Security Trustee, for the benefit and in the interest of Bondholders,

for the repayment of the principal and Interest under the Secured Bonds.

The band issue costs are being amartised annually over the period the Bonds will be redeemad.
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13.

14.

15,

Trade and other payables
2025 2024
Eur Eur
Trade payables 2,753 2,708
Accrued expenses 460,025 418,389
Amounts due to other related companies (note) 510,805 3,401
Amounts due to parent company (note) 659,378 544,378
1,632,941 1008 877

Mote: The amounts due to parent company and other rélated companies are unsecured, interest free and
rispayable on demand

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents included in the cash flow statement comprise the following statement of
financial position amounts:

2025 2024
Eur Eur
Casch at bank 122,231 610

Related party balances and transactions

identity of related parties
Parties are consldered to be related if one party has the ability 1o controf the other party or exercise
significant influence over the party in making financial or operational decisions.

The Company & cwned by Luxury Living Technolegies Limited (C 74593), a company having Its registerad
office a1 Greentek Business Camplex, Mew Street in Trig il-Hofor, Qormi, Malta, which is ultimately owned
by Mr. Jean Paul Busuttil, a Maltese national, Following his demise on 29 June 2025, the Company is now
ultimately owned by Mrs, Maria Mirjam Busuttil and M3, 5ophie Ann Busuttil,

Information on amounts due from/to related parties are $etout in note 9 and 13 respectively to these
finanmcial stataments.

All transactions with related parties were made on an arm's length basis.
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15. Related party balances and transactions {cont.}
Related party transactions
The following transactions were conducted with the related parties during the year:
2025 2024
Eur Eur
Gross income earned from parent company 40,000 415,300
Ranagement fee - 60,000
Directors’ fees 18,000 17,700
16, Eamlings per share
Earnings per share is based on the profit after taxation attributable 1o the ardinary shareholders of the
Company divided by the weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue during the year.
2025 2024
Eur Eur
Het profit attributable to owners of the company 19,519 B854
Weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue (note 11) 50,000 50,000
Earnings per share 0.30¢ 017
17.  Ewvents after the end of the reporting period

Mo adjusting or significant non-adjusting events have occurred between the reporting date and the date

of authorisation for Issue of these financial statements,
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Administrative and other expenses
For the year ended 30 June 2025
2025 24
Eur Eur
Amorsation 8,736 8,736
Budit fee 2,500 2,500
Bank charges 133 129
Directors' fees 18,000 17,700
Malta stock exchange and other charges 11,584 5,057
Frofessional feas 227 188704
Registration fee 350 350
41,530 67, 346
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General information

Reglstration
Luxury Living Technologies Limited is registered in Malta as a limited liability company under the Companigs
Act, 1995, The company’s registration number is C 74583,

Board of Directors

Mg, Maria Mirjam Busuttll (appointed on 15 April 2023)
Ms, Sophie Busuttil {appointed 14 August 2025)
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Dr. Paul DeBattista [appointed 14 August 2023}

Mr. Carle Mifsud (resigned on 14 August 2025)
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Registered office

Greentek Business Complex,
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Ciormmi
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Auditors

R Audit Limited
B, BRIV, Mdina Road
Balzan BZMN 2031
WALTA
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Directors' report
For the year ended 30 June 2025

The directors presant the annual report together with the audited financial statements of the Company and the
Group for the year ended 30 June 2025,

Principal Activities

Luxury Living Technologies Limited (the Company] was incaorporated on 1 March 2016 as the parent of the
Luxury Living Group, which consists of the Company and its subsidiaries Luxury Living Finance p.l.c., Luxury
Living Technologies (Trading) Limited , Holstein Selar Farm Ltd, Luxury Living Hospitality Limited, Luxury Living
Bullding and Construction Services Limited, Tal-Qampiena Solar Farm Limited and Luxury Living Manufacturing
Limited and Luxury Living Marketing and Distribution Limited.

The principal objects of the Group relate to providing eco and renewable energy solutions in a complete eco
system integrating a number of differant industries, specialising in instaliations of photovoltaic units in a varisty
of damestic, industrial and agricultural locations. The Group's operations comprise the trading, importing and
exporting, installing and maintaining of all kinds of merchandise related to renewable energy, especially water
softening and purifying systems, solar panels and solar powered devices and similar refated products in
domestic, industrial and agricultural locations, As part of their ongoing operations, the Group operates in the
hospitality sector which includes operating a hostel in 5t Julians,

Performance Review

During the year under review the Group, while continuing to face challenging periods due to the bureaucracy
within local regulators, it had started a thorough review of its operations to increase the overall efficiency of its
various branches of 1ts economic activities. This is reaping success leading to achieving set targets for the year
under consideration, As a result during the year the Group generated turnover of £2.64 million (FY2024: £2.58
million). Grass profit has decreased to €1.47 million (FY2024: €2.09 million), and the Group’s gross profit margin
decreased to 55% (FY2024:81%).

The Group’s administrative expenses decreased from £0.99 million in FY2024 to €0.46 milllon in FY2025. This
was mainly as & result of the review of the process operations of the Group’s economic activities.

A% a result, the Growp generated an operating profit of €1.01 million (FY2024: operating profit of £1.09 million),
This |5 testament of the work being done by the management and executive team in generating sales and
becoming more cost efficient that contribute more 1o its profits.

Qutlook for 2026

The objective for Luxury Living Group is to further strengthen and expand its core business by imvesting further
in photovoltaic farms and the new Industries it is now operating in, While the licensing process for PV systems
has been stabilised by REWS and the Ministry, this remains a very complex and ambiguous one. Following the
investment done in this segment of the Grouo's operations, the results for this financial year, will show a
substantial increase in the renewable energy being generated, with the result that the revenue will show a
marked increase,

The Group has continued to diversify its operations into the hospitality sector. The hostel, is yielding
encouraging results, with higher than the sector average of occupancy rate. The Group will continue to invest
in the hospitality sector, In the coming years, the Group will further expand by the opening of additional
upmarket boutique hotels,

The Group continues to grow its manufactured products and continues Lo work 10 tap into the export market
by expanding its product base. The Group has also entered into the import business of food and beverages and
has acquired the agency of three large manufacturers and distributors of wines, spirits, ligueurs and syrups.
The Group in this field is making rapid inroads.

Owverall, 2026 shauld see the Group achieving a healthy return on its investments which were carried out.
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Directors' report
For the year ended 30 June 2025

Dividends and Reserves
The results for the year are se1in the Consalidated Statement of Comprehensive Income on page 3.

The Board of Directors does not propase the payment of a dividend.

Reglstration
Luxury Living Technologes Limibed is registered in Malta as a limited liability company under the Companies
Act, [Cap. 386) with registration number C 74593,

Board of Directors

Prs, Maria Mirjam Busuttil
hs, Sophle Ann Busuttil
Dr, Paul DeBattista

Statement of Directors’ Responsibilities

Company law requires the directors to prepare financial statements for each financial period which give a true
and Fair view of the state of affairs of the company at the end of the financial period and of the profit or loss of
the company for that period.

Im preparing the financial staternents, the directars are required to:-

o select suitable accounting policies and apply them consistently;
make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent in the circumstances;
+ adopt the going concern basis, unless it is inappropriate to presume that the company will continuee in
business as a going cancern,
account for income and charges relating to the accounting period on the accruals basis;
value separately the components of assets and lability items; and
report comparative figures corresponding to those of the preceding accounting period.

The directars are responsible for keeping proper accounting records which disclose with reasonable accuracy,
at any time, the financial position of the company and to enable the directors to ensure that the financial
statements have been properly prepared in accordance with the Companies Act (Cap.236) enacted in Malta.
This responsibility includes designing, implamenting and maintaining such internal control as the directors
determing is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. The directors are also responsible for safeguarding the assats of
the company and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of frawd and other
irregularities.

Auditors
The auditors, RV Audit Limited have intimated their willingness to remain in office and a resolution proposing
their reappointment will be put before the members at the annual general meeting.
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Approved by the Board and signed by:

sl S

rs. Sophie Ann Busuttl
Director

Registered Address:
Greentek Business Complex,
Mew Street in Trig i-Hofor,
Qarmi

Malta

31 October 2025

plalald

Dr. Paul DeBattista
Director
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Independent auditor’s report Page 5.
to the shareholders of Luxury Living Technologies Limited

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Luxury Living Technologias Limited, set out on
pages 9 to 46 which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at 30 June 2025 and
consolidated statement of changes In equity, consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary
of significant arcounting policies and other explanatory notes,

In our apinion, the accompanying financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial pasition of
Luxury Living Technologies Limited as at 30 June 2025, and of its financial performance and its cash fows
for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted
by the EU and have been properly prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act
{Cap. 386).

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audlt of the Financial
Statements section of our report, We are independent of the Company in accordance with the international
Ethics Standards Board for Accountants” Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (IESBA Code) together
with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in accordance with
the Accountancy Profession (Code of Ethics for Warrant Holders) Directive lssued in terms of the
Accountancy Profession Act (Cap. 281} in Malta, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements and the IESBA Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Other Information

The directors are respansible for the other information. The ather information comprises the Directors’
Report. Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover this information, and we do not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon. In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other infarmation is
materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the awdit, or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated,
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Independent auditor's report [cont. Page 6.

to the shareholders of Luxury Living Technologies Limited
Other Information (cont.)

With respect to the Directors’ Report, we also consider whether the Directors' Report includes the disclosures
requited by Article 177 of the Maltese Companies Act [Cap. 386]. Based on the work we have performed, in our
gpeniomn;
» The information given in the Directors' Report for the financial year for which the financial skatemenis are
prepared in consistent with the financial statements; and
« The Directors’ Report has been prepared in accordance with the Maltese Companies Act iCap. 366}

I addition, in light of the knowledge and understanding of the Company and its environment obtained in the course
of our audit, we are reguired to repart if we have identified material misstatements in the Directors’ Report. We
have nothing to report in this regand.

Responsibilities of the Directors

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the financial statements that give @ true and fair view in
accordance with IFRS, and far such internal control as the directors deétermine is nacessary 1o enzble the preparation
of financial statements that are free from material misstaternent, whether due 1o fraud or error.in preparing the
financial statements, the directars are respoansible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue as 3 going concern,
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concem basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liguidate the Company or 1o cease operations, or has no realistic aiternative but 1o dao
50

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Dur cbjectives are 1o obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to frawd or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion,
Aeasonable atsurance is a high level of assurance, but is not @ guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
i5As will always detect @ material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or In the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influance the economic
dpcisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with 13As, we exgrcise professional judgment and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit, We also:

. |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statéments, whether due to fraud of
arror, design and perform audit procedures responsive 1o those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
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Indepandent auditor's report (cont.] Page 7.

to the shareholders of Luxury Living Technologies Limited
Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements {cont.}

. Obtain an understanding of internal contro! relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the Company’s internal control.

. Evaluate the appropriatengss of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and refared disclosures made by the directars.

. Conclude an the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting and based on
the audit evidence obiained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may
cast significant dowht on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that 2 material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s repart to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence abtained up 1o the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions
miay cause the company 10 cease (o continue as @ g0ing concem.

5 Evaluate the owverall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
mannar that achieves fair presentation. We communicate with the directors regarding. among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We communicate with those charged with governance, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the
audit 2nd significant audit findings, including any significant deficizncies in internal cantrol that we identify during
our audit.
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Ind dent auditor's report [cont. Page 8.

to the shareholders of Luxury Living Technologies Limited
Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements (cont.)
Under the Maltese Companies Act {Cap. 386) we are required to report 1o you if, in our opinion;

We have not received all the information and explanations we require for our awdit,

Adequate accounting records have not been kept, or that returns adequate for our audit have not been
received from branches not visited by us.

The financizl statemenis are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns.

We have nothing to report to you in respect of these responsibilities.

This of the audit report has been signed by

[ 5%

Raymond ) Vella CPA
]l or

RV Audit Limited

|
Il-.n Otober 2025
\

!
!
k. A

W
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Consolldated statement of prefit or loss and other comprehensive income
For the year ended 30 June 2025

The Group The Campany
2025 2024 2025 2024

Note ELR ELIR ELIR ELIR
Revernue 5 2,644,089 2,582,786 1,471,778 14972692
Cost of sales (1,177 E58) [495,294) {42,357) [139 BES)
Gross profit 1,466,231 2.086,492 1,428,881 1,832 807
Administrative expenses (456,846) [991,930) {370,288) [&79,503)
Earnings before interest, tax,
depreciation and amortisation 1,008,385 1,094,562 1,058,592 053,304
Amgrtisation on bond issue cost 15,.?35] 18,736] = -
Amortisation on development and
operational rights on property [113,240) (113,240) . -
Depreciation on right-of-use assets [176,730) (176,750] [169,620]  (169,620)
Depreciation on property, plant and
equipment [206,541) [312,151) [178,055)  [265,142)
Finance incomea B - 4 3 -
Finance cost i (555 904) (636,592 [581,821) 1614,732)
[Loss)/profit before taxation G [51,831) [152,947] 139,086  (100,190]
income tax {expense]/credit ] (13,258) 13,732 - 12,917
(Loss)/profit for the year {65,089) (139,215) 129,096 {87,273)

Attributable to:

Equity halders of the parent [65,089) (139,215} 129,096 1&7,273)
Non-controlling interests - - s .

[65,089) (139,215] 129,096 {87.273)

The accounting pelicles ond explanatory notes on poges 14 to 46 form an integral part of these fingncial
stolerments,
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Consolidated statement of financial position
As at 30 June 2025
The Graug The Company
2025 2024 2025 2024
Hote EUR EUR EUR ELR
ASSETS
Nof-curfent assets
Investrment in subsidiaries g . - 58,400 58, 400
Intangible assets 10 2.899.077 3012317 1 A50.077 3012317
Right-of-uze assets 1 1459476 1,636,266 1,344,751 1,514,371
Property, plant and equipment 12 5,904,229 5 956,405 4,502,910 4,858,300
Deferred tax asses 15 757,155 TT2.225 758,967 158,567
Trada and other receivables 1£.1 177,433 139,331 177,433 139,331
11,197,374 11,516, 544 10,141,538 10,341,606
Current assets
Inventaries 13 2,294,166 2,225,686 1,512,952 2,136,348
Trade and ather receivables 142 2,893 511 2,768,351 5,526,370 4107557
Cash and cash equivalangs 20 281,701 215,370 22,947 44,715
5,465,378 5.209,207 7,062,278 B,J88 620
Total assets 16,665,752 15,725951 17,203 816 16,630,226
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Ethare capital i6 2,931,000 2,831,000 2,931,000 2,831,000
Retalned earnings {2,617,296) (2,562,207 (2,248,712} (2.377.808)
Total equity 313,704 ITETe3 G2 288 553,182
Linhilities
Maon-current Babilities
Barrowings 17 8,774,453 84973, 752 8,271,003 £.450,246
Finance llabllities 1B 1,697,238 1,827,581 1,576,787 1,702,435
10,471 691 10,801,773 9847790 10,152,581
Current Babdlities
Borrowings ir 627 840 75,001 524,742 35,271
Finange liahilities 18 130,85% 128,234 135,B800 123,40%
Trade and other payables 1% 5.115.206 4,636,003 5,559,857 5072338
Current tax Hahilitles 7416 6,147 3,339 3,339
5881,357 5545385 E,673,738 5.024,383
Total equity and labilities 16,566,752 16,725,051 17,203,816 16,630,226

The consolidered fnanelal storemants 580 on peged 9 ta 46 were gppraved and outhorsed for Eswe by the Soord of

Divectors on jgau 2025 ond signad an its behalf by:

kis. Sophie Ann Busuttll
Director

D, Paul BeBattista

Director
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Consolidated statement of changes in equity
Far the year ended 30 June 2025
The Group Share Retalned

capital earnings Total

Eur Eur Eur

Balanceat 1 Juky 2023 2,531,000 13,412.8993) 518,008
Loss for the vear {139.215) [139,215])
Balance as at 30 June 2024 2,831,000 12,552,207} 373,793
Balance at 1 July 2024 2,931,000 (2,552,207} 378,793
Loss for the year - [65,089) [65,080]
Balance as at 30 June 25 2,931,000 (2,617,396 313,704

The accounting policles ond explanotory notes on pages 14 to 46 form on integral part af these finencial

s fafements.
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Consolidated statement of changes in equity [continued)
For the year ended 30 June 2025
The Campany Share Retained

capital earnings Total

Eur Eur Eur

Balance at 1 July 2023 2,931,000 {2,290,535) 540,465
Loss for the year - (87,273) (87,273)
Balance as ot 30 June 3024 2,531,000 i2,377,808] 553,192
Balance at 1 July 2024 2,931,000 12,377,808] 553,192
Loss for the year 129,096 129,096
Balance as at 30 June 3025 2,931,000 2,248,712} 682,288

The accounting policies and explonatory notes on poges 14 to 46 form an integrol part of these financial

EIOTEMEnTs.
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Consolidated statement of cash flows
For the year ended 30 June 2025
The Group The Campany
2025 2024 2025 2024
Hate EUR ELR ELIR EUR

Cash flows from aperating acthvities
Logs for the vear before taxatlon [ [51,831]) [152.947} 129,046 i10:, 190)
Adiustment for!
Depreciation 2nd amortisation 455 571 653,585 460,915 B05, 868
inperst on lease liability 106,056 113213 GEERs5 104,791
Miet inferest expense % 524,379 - 509,541
Leass payments ($34,138] [219,13E) (222,138] {207,138]

316,658 018,102 46,750 913273
Working copitel chonges
CHange in inventoses 13 {58, 480) (387.510) 623,106 [373,607)
Change in trade and other receivables 14 658,236  (1,527.279)  (1,45G6,924) (1,367,190}
Charige in trade and other payabies 19 707,471 526,168 887,519 Ti6,046
Cash generated generated from/|used in)
operating 1,613 885 1470,919] 520,748 [51,479)
het interest pald - 1524,374] - (5a,141]
TaK movemsant B 3077 1,004 - .
Net cash generated from/(used in} cperating
acthdities 1,615,962 [994,29E] 520,749 {545,620]
Cash from Investing activities
Dizposal of intangible agsets 0 . 9,310 = 4,310
Acguisition of property, plant and egquipment 12 [154,385) {70,587 [121,745) (27,487
Miet cash used kn [nvesting activities [154,3635) {81,277) (222.7a5) 118,177]
Cash from flnancing activities
Arounts advanced by related parties 17 (1,048, 768) 714,740 [4,0:99) 545,959
Wiovemart in bank loans 17 (22 97) (179,071} (173,243) [150,324]
Het cash [used injfgenerated from financing
activitles {1,252 563) 535 665 {163,342) L5 635
Increase[decrease) In cash and cash
equivabents 210,034 [519,906) 114,662 {168,162}
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year [373.818) 146,088 (>37.160] [3652,028)
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year P21 [153,784] [373,318) (122,528) (537,150}

The occounting policies ond explanatory notes on poges 14 to 46 form an integral port of these fingnciol

Statements.
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Motes to the consolidated financial statements
For the year ended 30 June 2025

31

Going concern
During the year ended 30 June 2025, the Group incurred a loss after tax of Eurdg5,088 [in 2024; a group
Ioss after tax of Eurl39,215) but the equity remained positive at Eur313,704 (in 2024; Eurd78,793). The
Eoard of directors believe that it remains appropriate to prepare these financial statements on a going
concern basis.

Corporate Informatlon

The consolidated financlal statements of Luxury Living Technologies Limited {"the Company™) and its
subsidiaries [“the Group”} for the yvear ended 30 June 2025 were authorised for issue in accordance with
a resolution approved by the Board of Directors on 31 October 2025,

Luxury Living Technologies Limited i registered in Malta as a Hmited Hability company under the
Companies Act, 1995, with its registered office at Greentek Business Complax, Mew Streat in Trig il-Hfar,

Qoomi, Malta.

The Group is principally engaged in holding investments related to renewable energies, food industry
and hospitality tourism,

A list of all subsidiary undertakings is provided In Mote 9.

Information on related party relationships of the Group is provided in Mote 21,
Significant accounting pollcles

Basis of measurement and statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards (IFR3s) a5 adopted by the EU and comply with the Companies Act, Cap. 386 of the Laws of
Malta, The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, except for
thiose assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value as stated in particular notes to the financial
statements.

The preparation of financial statements In conformity with IFRSs ac adopted by the EU requiris the use
of certain accounting estimates, It also requires directors Lo exercise their judgement in the process of
applying the Company’s and the Group's accounting polickes. Estimates and judgements are continually
evaluated and based on historical experience and other factors including expectations of future events
that are believe to be reasonable under the circumstances. The consolidated financial staterments are
presented in Eura [€), which is the functional and presentation currency of the Company and the Group,

The princlpal accounting polickes applied in the preparation of these consolidated financial statements
are set out below, These policies have been consistently applied to all the year presented, unless
otherwise stated.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

For the year ended 30 June 2025

3. Significant accounting policies (cont.)

3.2 Basis of consolidation
The consolidated financial statements comprise the financlal statements of the Company and iis
subsidiaries a5 at 30 June 2025, Control is achieved when the Group i5 exposed, or has rights, to variable
returng from its involvement with the investee and has the ability to affect those returns through its power
over the investee,
Specifically, the Group controls an investee i, and only if, the Group has:
# Power over the investee (l.e., existing rights that give it the current ability 1o direct the relevant activities

of the investee).

= Exposure, or rights, to variable returns from Its invalvement with the nvestes,
* The ability to use its power over the investee to affect its returns.
The Growp re-assesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there
are changes to one or more of the three elements of control. Consolidation of 3 subsidiary begins when
the Group cbtaing control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses control of the subsidiany.
Assets, liabilities, Income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the vear are included
in the consolidated financial statements from the date the Group gaing control until the date the Growp
ceases to control the subsidiary,
Praofit or loss and each component of OC| are attributed to the equity holders of the parent of the Growp
and to the non-controlling interests, even if this results in the non-controlling Interests having a deficit
balance.
When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of subsidiaries to bring their
atcounting policles Into line with the Group's accounting policies. All intra-group assets and Habilities,
gquity, income, expenses and cash flows relating to transactions between members of the Group are
eliminated in full on consolidation,
A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, i accounted for as an egquity
transaction,
If the Group loses contral over a subsidiary, it derecognises the related assets (including goodwill),
liabilities, non-controlling Interest and other components of equity, while any resultant gain or loss is
recognised in profit or koss. Any investment retained is recognised at fair value.

3.3  MNew or revised standards, Interpretations and amendments adopted

During the year under review, Lusury Living Technologies Limited has adopted a number of new standards
and interpretations, or amendments thereto, Bswed by the International Accounting Standards Beard and
International Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee, and endorsed by the European Union. The
director s of the opinion that the adoption of these standards, interpretations or amendments thereto,
did not have a material impact on these financial statements.

At the date of the statement of financial position, certain new standards, interpretations or amendments
thereto, were in tssue and endorsed by the European Unlon, but not yet effective for the current financial
year. There have been no instances of early adoption of standards, interpretations or amendments ahead
of their effective date. The director anticipates that the adoption of the new standards, interpretations ar
amendments thereto, will not have a2 material impact an the financial stetements upon inttial application,
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Motes to the consolidated financial statements
For the year ended 30 June 2025

3

2.4

Summary of significant accounting policies (cont.)

Property, plant & equipment

Froperty, plant and equipment |5 stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairmant losses, if any. Such cost includes the cost of replacing part of the plant and equipmeant and
borrowing costs for long-term construction projects if the recognition criteria are met, When significant
parts of plant and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Group depreciates them
separately based on their specific useful lies,

Likewlse, when a major inspection is performed, its cost ks recognised in the carrying amount of the plant
and equipment as a replacement if the recognition criteria are satisfied. All other repair and maintenance
costs are recognised in profit or loss as incurred. The present value of the expected cost for the
decommissioning of an asset after its use is Included in the tost of the raspective asset if the recognition
criteria for a provision are met.

When a revaluation surplus Is recorded in OC1, it is credited to the asset revaluation surplus in equity.
Howewver, to the extent that it reverses a revaluation deficit of the same asset previously recognised In
profit or loss, the increase ks recognised in profit and loss. A revaluation deficit is recognised in the
statement of profit or koss, except (o the extent that it offsets an existing surples on the same asset
recognised in the asset revaluation surplus,

An annual transfer from the asset revaluation surplus to retained earnings is made for the difference
between depreciation based on the revalued carrying amount of the assat and depreciation based on the
asset’s original cost. Additionally, accumulated depreciation as at the revaluation date is eliminated
against the gross carrylng amount of the asset and the net amount is restated to the revalued amount of
the asset, Upon disposal, any revaluation surplus relating to the particular asset being sold s transferred
to retained sarmings,

Deprectation Is calculated on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lhves of the assets, as foliows!

PV farms 2.86% per annum [previously 5% per annum]
improvemeants to bublldings 2% par anfum

Mator vehicles 20% per annum

Furniture & fittings 104 por annum

Other equipment 10% per annum

Computer equipmgnt 255% per annum

Flant and machinery 20% par annum

Durlng the year under review, the depreciation rate appiied to the PV farms was revised following a
reassessment of their estimated wseful lives. The resulting change in accounting estimate has been
applied prospectively.

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognised is derecognised
upon disposal (Le,, at the date the recipient abtains control) of when no future economic benefits are
expected from its use or disposal.

Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset [calculated as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss when the asset is derecognised.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of propery, plant and equipment are
raviewed at each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, f appropriate.
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Motes to the consalidated financial statements
For the year ended 30 June 2025

3.5

summary of significant accounting policies (cont.)

Iintangible assats

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. The cost of intangible
pssets acquired in a business combination is their fair value at the date of acquisition. Following initial
recognition, intangible assets are carrled at cost less any accumulated amortisation and accumulated
impairment losses. Intermally generated intangible assets, excluding capitalised development costs, are
not capitalised and expenditure is reflected In profit and loss In the year in which the expenditure is
incurred,

The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed as cither finite or indefinite,

Intangible assets with finite lives are amortised over the useful economic life and assessed for mpairment
whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation perod and
the amortisation method for an intangible asset with & finite useful life are reviewsd at least at the snd
of each reporting year, Changes in the expected useful life or the expected pattern of consumption of
future econgmic benefits embodied in the asset are considered to modify the amortisation year or
methed, as appropriate, and are treated as changes in accounting estimates, The amortisation expense
on Intangible assets with finite livas is recognised In the statement of comprehensive income as the
expense category that is conslstent with the function of the intangible assets.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are not amortised, but are tested for impairment annually,
gither individually or a1 the cash-generating unit level, Mo impairment resulted in the year under review,

The assessment of indefinite life is reviewed annually to determine whether the indefinite hfe continues
to be supportable, IF not, the change in useful life from indefinite to finite is made on a prospective basis.
Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are measured as the differance between
the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in the statement of
comprehensive income when the asset is derecognised,

Amortisation of intangible assets Is charged 1o profit or loss on a straight-line basls over their estimated
useful life commencing from the year In which the asset i first brought into ¢conomic wse. The group
amartises license rights with finite lives over a three year period. Goodwill is not amartised.

Impairment
Property, plont and eguipment, Infongible ossets ond invesiment In subsidiories

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying amounts of its property, plant and
equipment, intangible assets and investment in subsidiaries to determine whether there is any indication
that those assets have suffered an impairment loss, if any such indication exists, the recoverable amount
of the asset s estimated in order to datermine the extent of impairment loss (i any), When it 5 not
possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Group estimates the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs. When a ressaonable and consistent basis
of allocation can be identified, assets are also albocated to individual cash-generating units, or otherwise
they. arg allocated 1o the smallest group of cash-generating units for which a reasonable and consistent
allocation basis can be identified.
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Motes to the consolidated financial statements
For the year ended 30 June 2025

3.6

3.7

3.8

Summary of significant accounting podicles {cont.)

Impairment {cont.)
Froperty, plant and equipment, intongible assets ond fnvestrment in subsidiorres fcont,)

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal and value in use, In asseising valug
in use, the astimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate
that reflects the current market assessments of the time value of maney and the risks specific to the
asset for which the estimates of future cash flow hawe not bean adjusted,

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash generating unit) 15 estimated to be less than its carrying
amount, then the carrying amount of the asset {or cash generating wnit) is reduced to its recoverable
amount, An Impairment loss Is recognised Immediately in profit or loss, unless the relevant asset is
carried at o revalued amount, in which case the impairment loss i3 treated as a revaluation decrease.

When an impairment Ioss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-generating
unit] is Increased to the revised estimate of recoverable amount, but 50 that the increased carrying
amount does not exceed the carrving amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss
been recognised for the asset {or cash-generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss s
recognised immediately In profit or loss, unless the relevant asset 5 carmied at a revalued amount, in
which case the reversal of the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation increase,

Inventories

Inventories sre stated at the lower of cast and net realisable value, and mainky includes photovoliaic
farms which are In the course of construction. Consequently, costs include material, labour, borrowing
costs and any other costs directly attributable to the photovaltaic farms, Once photovoltaic farms are
connected 1o the grid, these are transferred from inventory to property, plant and equipment,

Met realisable value Is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the estimated
costs of completion and selling expenses,

Investment in subsidiaries
A subsidiary is an entity that is controlied by the company. Control Is the power 1o govaern the financial
and operating policies of an entity 55 as to obtain benefits from its activities.

Investment in subsidiaries is stated at cost less any impairmeant 1oss which may have arisen. Income from
the investment is recagnised only to the extent of distributions received from the Company from post-
acquisition profits, Distributions recelved In excess of such prafits are regarded as recovery of investment
and are recognised a5 o reduction of the cost of investment,
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Motes to the consolidated financial statements
For the year ended 30 June 2025

3.

3.9

Summary of significant accountlng policies [cont.)

Leased assets

The Group assesses whether a contract is or containg a lease atinception of the contract, & lease converys
the right to direct the use and obtain substantially all of the economic benefits of an identified asset for
a period of time in exchange for consideration,

Megsurement ond recognition af leoses as o lessee

At lease commencement date, the Group recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease liability in
its consolidated statement of financlal position. The right-of-use asset is measurad at cost, which
is made up of the mitial measurement of the lease liability, any initial direct costs incurred By the
Group, an estimate of any costs to dismantle and remove the asset at the end of the lease, and any
lease payments made in advance of the lease commencement date (net of any incentives received].

The Group depreciates the right-of-use asset on a straight-line basis from the lease commencemeant
date to the earlier of the end of the wseful life of the right-of-use asset or the end
of the lease term, The Group also assesses the right-of-use asset for impairmeént when such
indicators exist.

At the commencement date, the Group measures the lepse fability at the presemt value of the lease
payments unpaid at that date, discounted using the Group's incremental borrowing rate because
as the lease contracts are negotiated with third partées it Is not possible to determine the interest
rate that is Implicit kn the lease. The incremental borrowing rate 5 the estimated rate that the Group
wiould have 1o pay to borrow the same amount over 3 similar term, and with similar security 1o
obtain an asset of equivalent value. This rate is adjusted should the lessee entity have a different
risk profile to that of the Group.

Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease lability are made up of fixed payments
(imcluding in substance fixed), variable payments based on an Index or rate, amounts expecied
to be payable under & residual value guarantee and payments arising from options reasonably
certain 1o be exercised,

Subsequent to initial measurement, the Ffability will be reduced by lease paymenis that are
allecated between repayments of principal and finance costs, The finknce cost is the amount that
produces a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the lease liability.

The lease liability is reassessed when there i a change in the lease payments. Changes in lease
paymenty arising from a change in the lease tefm of 2 change in the assessment of an option to
purchase a leased asset, The revised lease payments sre discounted using the Group's incremantal
borrowing rate at the date of reassessment when the rate impliclt in the lease cannot be readily
determined. The amount of the remeasurement of the lease liability is reflected as an adjustment to
the carrying amount of the right-of-uie asset, The exception being when the carrying amount of the
right-of-use asset has been reduced to zero then any excess is recognised in profit or loss,
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Motes to the consolidated financial statements
For the year ended 30 June 2025

3.

3.8

3.10

Sumrmary of significant accounting policles {cont.)
Leased assets (cont.)

Measurement and recagnition of feases o5 a lessee foont.}

Payments under beases can also change when there is gither a change in the amounts expected to
be paid under residugl value guarantees or when future payments change through an index or a
rate used to determine those payments, including changes in market rental rates following a market
rent review, The lease liability & remeasured onby when the adjusiment to lease payments takes
gffect and the revised contractual payments for the remainder of the lease term are discounted
using an unchanged discount rate. Except for where the change in lease payments results from a
change in floating interest rates, in which case the discount rate 5 amended to reilect the change

In knberest rates.

An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset’s [or cash-generating unit's)
carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount, which is the higher of fair value less costs of
disposal and value-in-use. To determine the value-in-use, management estimates expected future
cash flows from each cash-generating unil and determines a sultable discount rate in order 1o
cakculate the present value of those cash flows. The data used for impairment testing procedures
are directly linked to the Group's latest approved budget, adjusted as necessary o extlude the
effects of future reorganisations and asset enhancements. Discount factors are determined
individually for each cash-generating unit and reflect current market assessments of the time value
of money and asset-specific risk factors,

impairment losses for cash-generating units reduce first the camrying amount of any goodwill
allocated to that cash-generating unit. Any remaining impairmant loss & charged pro rata to the
other assets in the cash-generating unit. With the exception of goodwill, all assets are subsequently
reassessad for indications that an impalrment loss previously recognised may no longer exist. An
impairment loss is reversed f the asset’s or cash-generating unit's recoverable amount exceeds its
carrylng amount.

Financial instruments — initial recognition and subsequent measurement
I} Financlal assets

Initial recognition and measurement

Financlal assets within the scope of IFRS 9 are classHied as financial assets at fair valee through profit or
lpss, loans and receivables, held-to-maturity investments, availabbe-for-sale fingncial assets, or as
derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate. The company
determines the classification of its financlal assets at initial racognition,

All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus transaction costs, except in the case of
financial assets recorded at fair value through profit or lass,

Purchases or sales of financial assets that reguire delivery of assets within 3 time frame established by
regulation or convention in the market place [regular way trades) are recognised on the trade date, l.e.
the date that the company commits to purchase or sell the asset,

The company's financial assets include cash and shart-term deposits, trade and other recelvables, quoted
and unquoted financial instruments.
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3.

Summary of significant accounting policles {cont.)

3.10 Fnancial instruments —initial recognition and subsequent measurement [cont.)

i} Financial assets {cont.}

Subféeguent medsurément
The subseguent measurement of financial assets depends on their classification as described below;

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss includes financial assets held for trading and financial
assets designated upon Initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss, Financial assets are classified
a5 held for rading if they are acquired for the purpose of selling or repurchasing in the near term.
Derivatives, including separated embedded derivatives are also classified as held for trading unless they
are designated as effective hedging instruments as defined by IFRS 9,

Financial assets at fair value through profit and loss are carried in the consolidated statement of financial
position at fair value with net changes in fair value recognised in finance costs in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income,

Financial assers designated upan initial recognition at fair value through profit and loss are designated at
their initial recognition date and only if the criteria undar IFRS 9 are satisfied. The company has aot
designated any financial assers at fair value through profit or loss,

The company evaluates its financial assets held for trading, other than derivatives, to determine whether
tha intention to sell them In the near term is still appropriate. When |n rare circumstances the company
is unable to trade these financial assets due toinactive markets and management’s intention to sell them
in the foreseeable future significantly changes, the company may elect to reclassify these financial assets.

The reclassification to loans and recewables, avallable-for-sale or held to maturity depends on the natura
of the asset, This evaluation does not affect any financial assets designated at fair value through profit or
loss using the fair value opticn at designation, these instruments cannot be reclassified after initial
recognithon. Derlvatives embedded In host contracts are accounted for as separate derivatives and
recorded at fair value if their economic characteristics and risks are not closely related to those of the
host contracts and the host contracts are not held for trading or designaved at falr value though profit or
foss,

These embedded derivatives are measured at fair value with changes In fair value recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, Reassessment only eoours if
there s 3 change in the terms of the contract that significantly modifies the cash flows that would
otherwise be reguired.

Loans and recejivablas

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assers with fiked ar determinable payments that are
not quoted in an active market, after initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the EIR method, less impairment. Amortised cost is caloulated by taking
into acoount any discownt or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the
EiR, The EIR amortsation is included in finance income in the consalidated statement of comprehensive
income, The lpsses arising from Impairment are recogniked In the consolidated statement of
comprahensive income in finance costs for boans and in cost of sales or other operating expenses for
receivabibes,
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Summary of significant accounting policies [cont.)
Financial Instruments = initial recognition and subsequent measurément [cont.)
i} Financial assets{cont.)

Derecognition

A financial asset {or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial
assets] s derecognised when:

= The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired.

* The company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation
to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under 3 ‘pass-through’
arrangement; and either (a) the company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the
asset, or (b} the company has neither transferred nor retained substantiatly all the risks and rewards of
the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

When the company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a
pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risks and rewards of
pwnership, When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of the
asset, nor transferred control of the assei, the asset Is recognised to the exten: of the company’s
continuing involvement in the asset. In that casa, the company alio recognises an assoctated liabifity, The
transferred asset and the associated lisbility are measured on 3 bask that reflects the rights and
ebligations that the company has retained.

Continuing invalvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measy red at the
lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the
carmpany could be required to repay.

if] Impairment of financial assets

The company assesses, at each reporting date, whether there i any objective evidence that a financial
asset or a group of financial assets is impaired. A financial asset or a group of financial assets is deemed
ta be impaired if, and anby if, there is objective evidence of impairment a5 a result of one or more guvents
that has occurred after the initial recognition of the asset {an incurred ‘loss event’] and that loss event
has an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or the group of financial 255615
that can be reliably estimated,

Evidence of impairment may Include indications that the debtors or a group of debitors is experiencing
significant financial difficulty, default or delinguency in interest or principal payments, the probability
that they will enter bankruptey or ather inancial reorganisation and when observable data indicate that
there s a measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows, such a5 changes in arrears or economic
conditions that correlate with defaulis.
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3.

summary of significant accounting policies {cont.}

3,10 Financial instruments = Initlal recognition and subsequent measurement (cont.)

i} impairment of financial assets [cont.)

Financial assets carried at amortised cost

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the company first assesses whether objective evidence of
impairment exists Iindividually for financial essets that are (ndivedually significant, or colfectively for
financial assets that are not Individually significant. IFthe company determines that no objective evidence
of impairment exists for an individually assessed financial asset, whether significant or not, it includes
the asset in a group of financial assets with similar credit risk characteristics and collectively assesses
them for impairment. Assers that are individually assessed for impairment and for which an impairment
loss s, or continues to be, recognised are not included in a collective assessment of impairment.

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss has been incurred, the amount of the loss i
measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimared
future cash flows (excluding future expected credit fosses that have not yet been incurred). The present
vilue of the estimated future cash flows is discounted at the financial asset's original effective interest
rate, If a loan has a variable interest rate, the discount rate for measuring any impairment loss i5 the
current EIR.

The carrying amount of The asset is reduced through the use of an allowance acoount and the amount of
the loss is recopnised in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income. Interest income continues
to e accrued on the reduced carrying amownt and s accrued using the rate of Interest used to discount
the future cash flows for the purpose of measunng the impairment loss,

The interest income ls recorded 3s part of finance income s the consclidated statement of
comprehensive income. Loans together with the associated allowance are written off when there is no
realistic prospect of future recovery and all collateral has been reslised or has been transferred 1o the

COMmpany.

If, In & subsequent year, the amount of the estimated impairment loss increases or decreases because of
pn 8vent occurring after the impairment was recognised, the previously recognised impairment los4 s
increased or reduced by adjusting the allowance account. If a future write-off is later recovered, the
recovary is credited to finance <osts in the consoldated statement of profit or loss and other
comgrehensive ingome,

i) Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial Habilities within the scope of IFRS 9 are classified as finoncial lkabilities at fair value through
profit or loss, leans and borrowings, or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an effective
hedge, as appropriate. The company determines the classification of its financial Habilities at initial
recogniton.

Al financial labilities are recognised initizlly at fair value ples, in the case of lpans and borrowings,
dlrl.‘.l.‘l:!‘y attribuia ble transaction costs.
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3.10

Financlal instruments — Inktial recognition and subsegquent measurement {cont.)
i} Financial Nabilities

Initial recognition and measurement [cont.)

The measurement of financlal Bebilitles depands on their classification as described below:

Fimancial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial llabilities held for trading and
financial liabilities designated upon Initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss,

Financial iabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabHities are classified as held for trading if they are acquired for the purpose of selling in the
near term. This category includes derbvative financial instruments entered Into, that are not designated
a% heedging instruments in hedge relationships as defined by IFRS 9, Separated embedded derhvatives are
also classified as held for trading unless they are designated as effective hedging instruments,

Gains or losses on Habilities held for trading are recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprahensive income,

Financial liabifities designated upan initlial recognition at fair value through profit and loss so designated
a1 the initial date of recognition, and anly if criteria of IFRS 9 are satisfied. The company has not
designated any financizl lability as at fair value through profit or loss,

Loans and borrowings

After Initial recognltion, Interest bearing foans and borrowings are subsequenthy measured 3t amortised
tost using the EIR method. Gaing and lesses are recognized in the consolidated statement of profit or boss
and other comprehensive income when the liabilities are derecognised as well a5 through the EIR
amartisation process,

Amaortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acgquisition and fees or
costs that are an Integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisatien is included In finance costs in the

consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehenshee income,
Derecognition

& financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the Rability is discharged or cancelled or
expires. Whan an existing financial llability Is replaced by another from the same lender on substantislly
different terms, or the terms of an existing Hability are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated 25 the derecognition of the ariging] hability and the recognition of 3 new lability.
The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the consolidated statement of profit
af loss and ather comprehensive income,

iv) Offsetting of financial instruments
Financlal assets and financeal Habilities are offset and the net amount reported in the conzolidated

statement of financial position if, and anly if;

= There s a currently enforceable legal right 1o offset the recognised amounts; and
#There Is an Intention to <ettle on 3 net basls, or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities
simultaneously.
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3.10
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3.12

2.13

4.14

3.15

Summary of significant accounting policies {cont.)
Financial ingtruments — initial recognition and subsequent measurement (oont.)

¥} Fair value of financial instruments

The fair value of financial instruments that are traded In active markets at each reporting date s
determined by reference to quoted market prices or dealer price quotations (bid price for long positions
and ask price for short positions], withgut any deduction for transaction costs. For financial instruments
nat traded in an active market, the fair value is determined using appropriate valuation technigues. Such
technigues may include:

= Using recent arm's length market transactions
» Reference to the current fair value of another instrument that is substantially the same
= 0 digcounted cash flow analyiis or other valuation models.

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are recognised and carried at original invoice amownt less an allowance for
any uncoliectible amounts. &n estimate for doubthul debts is made when collection of the full amount is
ng [onger probable, Bad debts are written-off as incurrad.

Trade and other payables
Liabikities for trade and other amounis payable are carried at cost which is the fair value of the
consideration 1o be paid in the future for goods and services received, whether or not billed to the

COmpany,

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash in hand and at banks and short-term deposits which are held to maturity are carried at cost,

Cash and cash equivalents are defined as cash in hand, demand deposits and shor-term, highly liguid
Investments readiy convertible to knewn amounts of cash and subject to insignificant risk of changes in
value,

For the purposes of the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and cash eguivalents consist of cash
in hand and depoasits at banks, net of outstanding bank overdrafts a5 they are considered an integral part
of the Group's cash management.

Share capital
Drdinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares

greshown In aguity as a deductbon, net of tax, fram the proceeds.

Revenue

Revenue from contracts with customers B measured at the fair value of the consideration received or
réceivable for goods sold and services provided in the normal course of business, net of value-added tax
and discounts, where applicable. Revenue & recognised to the extent that it is prabable that future
economic benefits will flow to the Group and these can be measured reliably,
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3.1%

Summary of significant accounting policies [cant.]
Revenwe (cont. )

The following specific recognition criteria must also be met before revenue is recognised:

The Group is in the business of selling, providing maintenance and installation of photovoltaic panels and
water softening and purifying systems and related ancillary products, Revenue from contracts with
customers is recognised when control of the goods or services are transferred 1o the customer at an
amount that reflects the consideration to which the Group expects to be entitled in exchange for those
goods or services,

The disclosures of significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions relating te revenue from
contracts with customers are provided in Mote 5.

Sale of goods

Revenue from sale of goods is recognised at the paint in time when control of the asset ks transferred to
the customer, which generally coincides with the date of the invoice. In case of commaercial sales, the
Group considers whether there are other premises in the contract that are separate performance
obligations to which a portion of the transaction price needs to be allocated,

Rendering of services

Revenue from rendering of services i recognised when the outcome of a transaction involving the
rendering of services can be estimated reliably, Revenue fram the provision of maintenance support
services i recognised in proportion to the stage of completion of the trangaction at the balance sheet
date,

Waorranty obligations

The Group typically provides warranties for general repairs of defects that existed at the time of sale, as
required by law. These assurance-type warranties are accounted for under 1AS 37 Provisions, Contingent
Liabilities and Contingent Assets.

Contract balances

Controct ossels

A contract asset Is the right to consideration in exchange for goods or services transferred to the customer.
If the Group performs by transferring goods or services to a customer before the customer pays
consideration or before payment is due, a conteact asset is recognised for the earned consideration that
is conditional.

Trade recehrsbies
A receiable represents the Group's right to an amount of consideration thar i unconditional {1L.e. only
the passage of time s required before payment of the consideration is duel,

Cantract licbilities

A contract liabiity is the obligation to transfer goods or services to a customer for which the Group has
received consideration [or an amount of consideration is due) from the customer, If a customer pays
consideration before the Group transfers goods or services to the customer, a contract liability ks
recognised when the payment Is made, or the payment is due (whichever is earlier). Contract liabilities
are recognised as revenyue when the Group performs under the contract,
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31.15

3.16

3.17

3.8

summary of significant accounting policies (cont.}
Revenuwe [cont.]

Provision of services

Hevenue from the provishon of services is recognised in the vear in which the services are rendered, by
reference 1o the completion of the specific transaction assessed based on the actual service provided as
a proporiion of the total services 1o be provided.,

Inferest and investment income
interest income is accounted for when it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the
transacthon will flow to the Group and these can be measured refiably.

Dividend income
Dividend income ks recognised on the date the Group’s right to recelve income is established,

Provislons

Provicions are recognised when the Group has & present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a
past event, it is probable that an outflow of rescurces embodying economic benefits will be required 1o
setthe the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation, Where the
Group expects some or all of a provision 1o be reimbursed, for example under an insurance contract, the
reimbursement is recognised as a separate asset but only when the relmbursement is virtually certain.
The expense relating to any provision is presented in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive Income net of any reimbursement.

Ifthe effect of the time value of money is material, provislons are discounted using a current pre-iax rate
that reflects, where appropniate, the risks specific 1o the labdlity. Where discounting s used, the increase

in the provision due 1o the passage of time s recognised as a finance cost.

Farelgn currencies
Translatkons denominated in forelgn currencles are transiated at the exchange rate ruling on the date of

the transactions. Monetary receivables and payvables denominated in foreign currencies are translated
at the rates of exchange prevailing at each reporting date. Translation differences are dealt within the
consolidated staterment of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.

Tanes

Current income tax

Current mcome tax gsses and Labifities for the current and prior years are measured at the amount
eupected o be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to
compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted by the consolidated statement
of finencial position date.

Current Income tax relating to items recognised directly in equity i recognised in equity and not in the
statement of comprehensive income.
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Summary of significant accounting policles [cont.)

3.1E Tawes (cont.)

Deferred tax
Deferred tax ks provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the tax bases of
assets and liabilities and their carrying amaunts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting date,

Deferred tax labilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences, except:

When the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill ar an asset or liability in 2
transaclion that is nat 8 business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects nefthar the
sccounting profit nor taxable profit or loss, In respect of taxable temiporary differences associated with
Imvestments in subsidiaries, assoclates and interests in joint ventures, when the timing of the reversal of
the temporary differences can be controlled and it s probable that the temporary differences will nat
reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of unused
tax credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry
forward of unused tax credits and unused tax bosses can be wtilised, except:

When the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporany difference arises from the initial
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the tima of
the transaction, affects neither the azcounting profit nor taxsble profit or loss,

In respect of deductihle temporary differences assoclated with investments in subsidiaries, associates
and interests in joint ventures, deférred tax assets are recognised anly o the extent that it is probable
that the temparary differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be available
against which the termporany differences can be utilised.

Thie carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewsed at each reporting date and reduced o the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available o allow all or part of the
deferred tax asset to be utilised, Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at each reporting date
and are recognised to the extent that it has becorme probable that future taxable profits will allow the
defarred tax asset 1o be recovered, Deferred tak assets and Nzbilities are measured a5 the tax rates that
are expected to apply in the year when the asset is realised or the lability is settled, based on tax rates
{and tax laws) that have baen enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outskde profit or loss is recognised outside prafit or loss,
Deferred tax items are. recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax Habilittes are offset if 2 legally enforceable right exists to set off
current tax sssets against current income tax Habilities and the defesred taxes relate to the same taxable
entity and the same taxation authority.
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321

Summary of significant accounting policies (cont.)
Taxes (cont.]

Deferred tax {cont,)

Tax benefits acquired as part of a business combination, but not satisfying the criteria for separate
recognition at that date, are recognised subsequently if new information about facts and circumstances
change. The adjustment is either treated as a reduction to goodwill {as long as it does not exceed
goodwill) if it was incurred during the measurement period or recognised in profit or loss.

Dividends
Dividends are recognised as liabilities once they are no longer at the discretion of the Company.

Bormrowlng costs

Borrowing costs which are incurred for the purpose of acquiring or constructing qualifying property, plant
and equipment or invesiment propery, ane capitalised as part of its oost, Barrowing costs are capitalized
while acquisition of construction is actively underway, during the period of time that Is required to
compete and prepare the asset for its intended use. Capitalisation of borrowing costs is ceased ance the
asset is substantially complete and is suspended if the development of the dsset s suspended, All other
borrawing costs are expensed,

Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for wsing the acguisition method. The cost of an acquisition s
measured 25 the aggregate of the consideration transferred measured at acquisition date fair value and
the amount of any non-controlling interest in the acquiree. For each business combination; the Group
elects whether to measure the non-controlling interest in the acquiree at fair value or at the
propomienate share of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. Acquisition-related costs are expensed as
incurred and included in administrative expenses,

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial assets and liabilitles assumed for
appropriate classification and designation in accordance with the contractual terms, economic
circumstances and pertinént conditions as at the acguisition date. This includes the separation of
embedded derivatives In host contracts by the acguiree.

Any contingent consideration 1o be transferned by the acguirer will be recognised at fair value at the
acquisition date. Contingent consideration classified as an asset or liakility that Is a financial instrument
and within the scope of IFRS 9 Financial Instrurments: Recognitien and Measurament, i measured at fair
value with the changes i fair value recognised in the statement of profit or loss in accordance with
IFRS 9. Other contingent consideration that is not within the scope of IFAS 9 is measured at fair value at
each reporting date with changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss. Goodwill is initialy measured
a1 cost (being the excess of the aggregate of the consideration transferred and the amoum recognised
for non-controlling interests and any previous intesest held aver the net identifiable assets acquired and
liabilities assumed). If the fair value of the net assets acquired is in excess of the aggregate consideration
transferred, the Group re-assesses whether it has correctly identified all of the assets acquired and all of
the lisbifities assumed and reviews the procedures used to measure the amounts to be recognised at the
acquisition date. If the reassessment still results in an excess of the fair value of net assets acquired over
the aggregate consideration transferred, then the gain is recognised in profit or loss,
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Summary of significant accounting policies [cont.)
Business cambinations and goedwill (cont.}

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any accumulated impairment losses. For the
purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in 3 business combination is, from the acquisition date,
allocated to each of the Group's cash-generating units that are expected to benefit from the combination,
Irrespective of whether other assets or Habilities of the acquires are assigned to those units,

Where geodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating unit and part of the operation within that unit
is disposed of, the goodwill associated with the disposed operation is included in the carrying amount of
the operation when determining the galn or loss on disposal. Goodwlll disposed in these circumstances
is measured based on the refative values of the disposed operation and the portion of the cash-
gonerating unit retained.

Judgement in applying accounting policies and key sources of estimation uncertainty

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are reguired to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect reported Income, expenses, assets, Eabllities and disclosures of contingent assets
and labitities. Use of available information and applcation af judgement are inherant in the formation
of estimates. Actual results in the future could differ from such estimates and the differences may be
miaterial to the financial statements, these estimates are reviewed on a regular basis and if a change is
needed, It s accounted in the period the changes become known,

In the opinion of the management, except for the above, the accounting estimates, assumption: and
jedgements made in the course of preparing these financlal statements are not difficult, subjective or
comples to a degree which would warrant their description as significant in terms of the requirerments of
145 1 {revised) = 'Presentation of Financial Statements’.

Revenue
The Group The Company

2025 2024 2025 2024

EUR ELR EUR EUR
Revenue from sale of PV eguipment 2E8,903 1,364 088 T4,959% 1343265
Revenue from feed-in-tariffs 671,681 656,312 396,779 481,515
Revenue from sale of goods 417,798 268,779 " 142,524
Revenue from boutique hotel 261,101 279,684 - -
Others 1.004,608 13523 1,000,000 5387

Total revenue 2,644,089 2,786 14717768 1,973,892
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a. Lossf{profit) before taxation
The loss before tax has been arrived at after deducting the following expenses:
The Group The Comiprany
2025 2024 2025 2024
EUR EUR EURA ELR
Depreciation on progerty, plant and
equipment (note 12) 206,541 363,565 178,055 323,007
Depreciation on right-of-use asset [note 11} 176,790 176,790 169,620 169,620
Amortisation on bond isswe cost [note 17) 8,736 8,736 - -
Interest on finance liability (note 18] 106,056 113,213 98,885 104,731
Audit fes 16,650 15,765 5,550 5,500
Sialt cosis |:n|;|1_|: 7 ?55‘,1[!3 BY0L 273 ET,IET “5,51’5
Directors rermunération (note 7) 138,825 115,858 120,829 98,198
Fingnce cost
The Group The Company
2025 2024 2025 2024
EUR EUR EUR EUR
Interest on boan from subsidiary - - 460,000 415 800
Interest on bond borrowings 400,000 400,000 - -
Interest on bank borrowings 49,853 124,379 22,936 94,141
Interest on bease liability 106,056 112,213 98 &85 104,731
555,909 B36,592 581 821 614,733
Fimance incowme
The Group The Campany
2025 2024 2023 2024
EUR EUR EUR EUR

Interest income from bank
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7.  5taff costs and employee information
Staff costs for the year comprised of the following:
The Group The Campany
2025 2024 2025 2024
ELR EUR EUR EUR
Gross wages and 55 contribution 767,477 650,273 57,168 485,526
Directors’ remuneration 138,825 115,298 120,824 S8, 158
a6, 302 806,171 177,992 583,714

—

The average number of persons (including directors) emploved by the Company during the vear was as

follows:

CUperational
Administration

8, Income tax
81 Amounts recognised in prafit or logs

Current tax expense
Fimal withhokding tax
Deferred tax [expense | fenedit

The Growp
2025 2024
Eur Eur
e el =
12 10
40 36
The Company
2025 2024
Eur Eur
- 13917

The Group
2025 2024
Eur Eur
[13,258) 13,732
{13,258) 13,732

12,917
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8. Income tax [cont.)
82 The tax expense for the year can be reconciled to the results of the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and ather comprahensive income as fallows:

The Group The Company
2025 024 2025 2024
Eur Eur Eur Eur
[Loss}fprofit betore taxation for the vear {51,831} (152,947} 129096  [100,130)
Income fax (expense)/credit {13,255) 13,732 - 12,917

[Loss)fprofit after tax from continued operations i|65,089) [139,215y 129096 (87273

Tax at the applicable rate of 35% 18,141 53,531 (45,1B4] 35,066
Tax effect af:
Disallowed expenses [123,731) [266,200) (123,731] (209,007)
UtiHsed tax loss 11,445 35,253 - -
Abiorbed capital allowances 170,921 97,333 168,915 97,333
increase In unabsorbed capital allowances
and tax losses (76,777) 227,617 - 227,613
Difference between NBY and WDY - [214,686) - [214,696)
Other allowabbe deductions - 80,898 s 75,698
Deferred tax movement [13,258) - - .
{13,258) 13,732 - 12,917

Investment in subsidiaries

The Company
2025 2024
Eur Eur
Az at beginning of year and at end of year 58,400 58,400
The subsidiarkes as at 30 June 2025 are shown below:
Registered office % shares held 2025
Eur
Luxury Living Fimance p.l.c. Greantek Business Complex 90.99% 49,599
L BS987 MNew Street in Trig [FHofor,
Qorrni
Luxury Living Technologies Greentek Business Complex 1008 1,200
(Trading) Lid Mew Steeet in Trig il-Hofor,
[ B3E88 Carmi
Halstein Solar Farm Limited Greentek Business Comiplex 100% 1,200
Co97134 Maw Street in Trig I-Hofor,

Carrmi
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9. Investment in subsidiaries [cont.)
Registered office % shares held 2025
Eur
Tal-Qampiena Solar Farm Limited Greentek Business Complex 100% 1,200
£ 98452 Mew Street in Trig i-Hofor,
Cormi
Lusury Living Building & Construction Greentek Business Complex 100% 1,200
Services Lid] Mew Streat in Trig il-Hafor,
C 8786 Ciarmi
Luzury Living Hospitality Limited Greentek Business Complex 100% 1,200
C 101587 Mew Street in Trig il-Hofor,
Ciarmi
Luxury Living Marketing & Greentek Business Complex 100% 1,200
Distribution Limited Mew Street in Trig H-Hofor,
C 102388 Clormi
Luxury Living Manufacturing Limited Greentek Busingss Complex 100% 1,200
102387 Mew Street in Trig il-Hofor,
Clarmi
The share capital and reserves of the subsidiaries at reparting date stood as follows:
2024 2023
Eur Eur
Qrdinary share capital 58,400 58,400
Retained earnings {148,875) 155 EO&
(90,475) 214 206
10. Intangible assets
The Group The Company
2025 J024 2025 202a
Eur Eur Eur ELH
Development and operational
rights on property 2,431,000 2,831,000 2,831,000 2,831,000
Less accumulated amartisation {386,903) {273,653) {386,903) |273,663}
Goodwill on acquisition of Smoochie
brand 303,600 303,800 303,600 303 600
Goodwill on take-over of restaurant 150,000 150,000 150,000 130,000
Trademarks 1,380 1,3E0 1,380 1,380
2,899,077 3.012.317 2,899,077 1012317




LUXURY LIVING TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED Page 35.
Motes to the consolidated financial statements
For the year ended 30 June 2025
11, Right-of-use assets
The Group
Total
Eur
Cost
As at 1 July 2023 2487521
Additiang 4
Balance a3 at 30 June 2024 2487521
Bccumulated depreclation
AS 8t 1 July 2023 (674,465}
Depreciation for the year {1hs, 790y
Balance o a0 30 June 2024 |B51,255)
Carrying amount
a5 at 30 June 2024 1,636,166
Cost
A5 ae 1 July 2024 2,487 521
Additions -
Balamce &4 at 30 June 2025 2ABT 511
Actumulated depreciation
Asat 1 July 2024 (851, 255]
Depreciatian for the year 178,790}
Balance as at 30 June 2025 11,028,0a5]
Carrying amount
as at 30 June 2025

1,459,476

Mote: The Group leases @ number of roofs. The terms of the leases range from @ to 23 years, the earliest

commencing in 2017,
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11. Right-of-use assets [cont.)

The Company

Cost

&5 ab 1 huty 2023
Additions

Balance as at 30 June 20E4

Accumulated depreciation
A an 1 oy 2023
Depreciation for the year

Balance as at 30 June 2024

Carrylng amaunt
a8 at 10 June 2024

Cost

Asat 1 July 2024
Additions

Balance a5 at 30 June 2025

Bccumulated depreciation
Ag at 1 July 2024
U'I!FII'EELIHEII'I far the e

Balance as at 30 June 2025

Carrying amount
as 8t 30 June 2025

Tatal

Euir

2,344,114

2,344,116

[&60,125)
(169,620

[B25, 745}

1,514,371

2,344,116

2.344,116

(829,745
(169,620

[599,365}

1,344,751

Mote: The Company leases a number of rools, The terms of the leases range from 9 to 23 years, the

garllest commeancing in 2007,



GIT'POE'S  SLO'ET ET8'DL PEETT ZOZ'EV TSD'SSZ'T OB VET' LIVt anga §oog a0 Jursers
{zss'eeg't) (0ST'wOR)  (PIB'EG) {v60'tZ)  [6SEwET)  (DLT°TT)  (GEV'SE]  [9LE'ERE'T) Lo PRITIMUNIY
T8LERLE oreLLl £29°r9L BEFEE 199°¢LT IICTLET BSF L5 OTS098's 1509
§20C dunf Of 105y
GIZ'FO6'S  SL9'ET ET8°0L PEETT ZOZ'Er I50°SSZ'T  OLG'TE VET LIy FnjEn §ooqiau Tutke
{tes'apr}  iser'ez) [5L6°FT) {8¥EE) [GoT'8T] [pet'iz) [eTOL) [#15'811) afieys uopsrasdag
=1 4 [oL's DopE 0L TEE'ST BOO'E BIE'ZZT SUDMYPPY
COF'OCES GOL'BE ZEE'ER TH9°bE DEE'Th LZ¥DEz'l VRG'2T TEE'ELKE anjeA 5000 10U Bwusdn
SE0T sunf Of 10 5y
SOM'9S6'S  BOL'BE TEE'ER TE9'pL 086'TY LTVOBTT YRG'TE TEE'ELY'Y anjes 3ooq Jau Jussop
ITIFERD'I]  I8T0'TR] [GEE"RL) 19 "L 1) (05E'9LT) (QEL BH) (e FE] e L) U e ndap payEmunoy
GIFRESL ¥ILBIT TLlEst LHEFE OEE'RST ESTOLE'T GBSk EGT'AEL'S 1507
FEOE AfOr T 1E oy
an3 ing an3 an3 in3 ng inj ang
L4111 iadinba pumd|nba sHupmg g ELTRIETEL sdup|InG REDUUDIEIA  Sliliiey
Jayndusey ADYI Banjuang 1111 o] ‘moadg LR LT R Ad SIS St
jupindinba pue jusd ‘Auadoiy 71
SZ0F auny o papua Jeak 3y} 104
FIUALUIALELS [R2UBUL PRLERPIDSUDD D) 0 5310
LE ddeg QALINIT SIDOTONHIAL ONIAIT AHNXNT



OT&'Z06 Y FaTET GER'SS TEL'TT n) o PEO'ESET OLETE TR OTS'E INRA 00 FaU HRHSE)S
leve'esett)  (19E°66) {grn'as) (tzo'te)  (v98'wer) (621210} (GBY'SE]  (STH'I8Z'1) Lo ERadap eIy
£ST'0Ma GLS'BIT LRS'PET ESLTE TR BRI EST'OLET BSFES CRRLRLD 1507
STOE 2unf Of e &y
DIG'ZO6'Y  FET'ST 66V'a% TEL'TT ) (4T PIO'ESE'T  OL6°1E Z8b'91S'E anjen yooqiau Surse)
(550°8L1) 15E8°0%) {12y 1SLEE) [zag'11] feor'se] {¥10°1) [550'50T) allieys uoneasdag
ShETEY ERS™D . 59E 98091 . - S04 G6HT LGy
Fra N QEFEE QFT's9 Te9'¥T Off 6T LIE0ETT PRETEE CER'TEV'E an|ea 3000 130 Swmusdn
CI0T 2unf Of 1e 5y
i OEF'EE 0ZT's9 T¥a'vT QBLE1 a1 FEGEL i - anjen xoog v duse)s
{E6T'6dsT) [955%8L) ILip'as) LA 4] [zog'ets)  [oes'ewl (S0 FE) [Pl TA | wonenadap parmunaoy
E1SLEN'D GEG"TT1 LVS'PET LFETTE BERLZEL EST'DEEL BSELS 61 R6S" 1503
PEOT Ajnr T ae sy
ng ang 1L E| iny iny ang ing ang
jEyE ] judwdinba Juswdnba s3unug 5 Iy an sAuppping L T IR R TTE  TTET ]
sapndwoy SR BAMQURY SO0 oy “Adadu) o uely i P —
(auea) juswdinbas pue Jueyd ‘Auadosg 7T
SZOL 2unf g papua ieah 3y J04
SIUDUALELS [EUBULY PAIEPOSUOD BY] O] Sa10N
‘gt aded Q3LIAINM STID0TONHIIL ONIAIN AHNXNT



LUXURY LIVING TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED Page 39.
Notes to the consolidated financial statements
For the year ended 30 June 2025
13, Inventories
The Group The Company
2025 2024 2025 L0324
Eur Eur Esr Eur
Finished goods and work in progress 2,298,166 2,225,686 1,512,952 2,136,348
14, Trade and other receivables
J4.1 Non-curren? assers
The Group The Company
2025 PLir 2025 2024
Eur Eur Eur Eur
Trade receivables 177,433 139,331 177,433 133,331
14.2 Current gssets
The Group The Company
2025 2024 2025 024
Eur Eur Eur Eur
Trade recepvables and accrued income 1,276,350 1,983,998 939,043 1,792,101
Other raceivablas 823,269 Td.526 71,906 71,539
Deferred cost L4585 5498 £.498 5498
Frepayments 6,567 4,000 2,587 -
Amounts due from
parent company {nole) 20,182 17,147 17,062 17,062
Amounts due from subsidiaries (note) . - 1,690,083 1,539,175
Amounts due from other
related companies (note) 1,501,645 633,182 2,800,220 B3, 182
2,893,511 A.768 351 5,926,379 4,107,557

Mote: The amounts due from parent company, subsidiaries and other related companies are unsecured,

interest free and repayable on demand,
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15. Daferred taxation

Recognited deferred toxation

Deferred taxation ks attributable to the following:

The Compamy hszets Liabilities Met
2025 2024 2025 2034 2025 2024
Eur Eur Eur Eur Eur Eur
Tax effect of:
Unabserbed capital allowaces and
trading bosses 1,886,515 1,8B6.515 - - 1,886,515 1,886,515
Excess of capital allowances
aver depreciatéon - - (1,127,548} {1,127 548] §1,127.5498) (1,127 548)
a5 at 30 June 2025 1,886,515 1EBEGSIS (1127548} (1127548} 758,967 T5E. 957
The Group Assets Liabilities Met
2025 2024 2025 2024 2025 2024
Eur Eur Eur Eur Eur Eur
Toax effect af:
Unabsorbed capital allowaces and
trading losses 1,908,733 1,923,865 - « 1,908,799 1,923 865
Excess of capital allowances
over depreciation - « 11,158,540) {1,150.640] [1,151,640)(1,151,640]
Az at 30 June 2025 1,908,799 14933 B6S 1,151,640) {1,155,6540] 757,159 771,225

16, Share capital

The Group The Company
2025 2024 2025 2024
Eur Eusr Eur Eur
Authorised
2,931,000 Ordinary shares of Eurl each 2,931,000 2931000 2,531,000 2,931,000
issued and fully pald ugp

2,931,000 Ordinary shares of Eurl each 2,531,000 2,931,000 2931000 2,931,000
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17. Borrowings

The Group The Company

2025 2024 2025 2024
Mon-current labilities Eur Eur Eur Eur
5% Secured Bonds 2028 (note 17.1) 7,573,098 7.964,362 - -
Bank loan | {note 17.2) 65,568 187,145 65,568 187,145
Bank loan 1l fnote 17.2) 286,914 344,580 286,914 344 580
Bank loan 1l and IV [note 17.2) - - - -
Bank loan V {note 17.2] 448,873 477,705 . -
Loan due to subskdlany (note 17.4) - - 7,918,521 7918521
B,774,453 B.973,792 8,271,003  B450.246

Current liabilitles
Bank overdraft [note 17.3) 445,485 581,905 445475 581,905
Crverdrawn bank balance - 7823 - -
Bank koan | (note 17.2) 101,508 95,132 101,508 96,182
Bank koan ii [note 17.2) 37,759 35,364 37,759 35,364
Bank koan Il and IV [note 17.2) . 11,820 - 11320
Bank toan Vi [note 17.2) 43,088 43,907 - -
B27 840 75,001 584,742 725,271
Total 11,384 021 11,985,780 10,580,687 11,235,186

MWote 17.1 - Debt securities represent finance which was ralsed though the issue of bonds by one of the
companies within the Group in pricr years. The Secured Bonds shall constitute the general, direct and
unconditional obligations of the ssuer, and shall at all times rank parl passu, without any priocity or
preference among themselves. The Secured Bonds shall be guaranteed in respect of both the interest and
the principal amount due under said Secured Bonds by the Guarantor in terms of the Guarantee. The
Secured Bonds shall rank with priority in relation 1o the Pledged Shares. Pursuant to the Pledge
Agreement, the Pledgor has agreed to constitute in favour of the Security Trustee for the benefit of
Bondholders as Beneficiaries, 3 pledge over the shaves held in Luxury Living Technologies Limited, The
Pledge will secure the claim of the Security Trustee, for the beneflt and in the interest of Bondhobders, for
the repayment of the principal and Interest under the Secured Bonds. Interest on the 5% Secured Bonds
2028 is payvable annually in arrears, on 29 luly of each year.,

Mote 17,2 The bank loans are secured by 3 general hypothec aver the Company's present and future
assets, puardniess gven by the Compeny and group companies and by pledge over the affillate’s
insurance policies in the name of the Company covering properties. The interest and repayments for each
recpective loan are as per below:

Bank loan | and 11 - bear interest at 3.8% and 3,65 per annum respectively (in 2024; 3,85 and 3.6% per
annum respectively]) and are repayable in monthly instalments of Eurd, 985 and Eurd, 135 respectively
inclusive of interest {in 2024; Eurd, 985 and Eurd, 135 inclusive of interest].

= Bank loan lil and IV = these are repayable in monthly instalments of Eurl5S1 and Eur76 respectively.
These koans were part of the COVID-19 assistance granted by the bank with no interest and with
a E-meonth moratorium period,
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17,

18,

Borrowings {cont.)

Mote 17.2 {cont.)

- Bankloas V —thiz loan Bears interest at 4% per annum and ks repayable in equal monthly instalments
of Eur3, 166, Inclusive of interest.

The current portion of the bank. loans which are repayable within twelve months are disclosed as
‘current labilities'.

Mote 17.3: The bank everdrafi is limited to EurS00,000 (in 2024; Eur500,000]. The excess of EurB1,505
reprasents unpresented cheques as at yvear-end. The bank overdeaft bears interest at 2.25% per anaum
lin 2024; 2.25% per annum] and Is repayable on demand, The bank overdraft is secured by a general
hypothec over the Company's present and future assets.

Mote 17.4 - The lean due to subsidiaries relates to the transfer of funds from the subsidiary to the parent
company, generated by the issue of bonds. This loan is unsecured, carries interest at 5.25% per annum
and Is repayable in full by not later than 30 June 2028.

Fimance liabilities

The Group The Campany
2025 2024 2025 2024
Eur Ewr Ewer Eur
Gross lease payments
Nen-current liabilities
Duwe after more than five years 1,056,869 1,113,932 959,758 1,015,560
Due after more than one year but within
five years 640,364 708,999 El?,l:'.I'EE BEBG,875
1,697,238 1,827,981 1,576,787 1,702,435
Current Hobilities
Due within one vear 130,855 128,234 125,800 123,405

1,828,133 1,956,215 1,702,587 1,825,840

The carrying amaount of lease lability recognised during the year is as follows:

The Groug The Company
2025 2024 2025 024
Eur Eur Ewr Eusr
Dpening balance 1,956,215 2,063,140 1,825,840 1,928,187
Interest 106,058 112 213 88,885 104,781
Lease payments [234,138) (219,138} [222,138) (207,138}

Closing balance 1,828,133 1,956,215 1,702,587 1.325.840
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18,  Finance liabilities (cont.}

The Groaup The Company
2025 2024 2025 2024
Eur Eur Eur Ear
The following are the amounts
recognised in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income relating to leases:
Interest expense 106,056 112,213 88, 845 104,791
Depreciation expensa 176,790 176,790 169 620 165,620
282,846 2E8,003 268,505 274,411
19. Trade and other payables
The Group The Compaty
2025 2024 2025 2024
Eur Eur Eur Eur
Trade payables 838,249 624,013 845,112 531,134
Advance deposits - - - =
Accruals 1,113,502 892,722 2,269,953 1,659,366
Indirect taxation (note 19.1) 888,598 671,445 BER, 593 671,445
VAT liability 107,913 B7.197 S8.820 70,527
Other payables 184,816 80,625 132,432 80,737
Amounts due to
subsidiaries (note 19.2] - - 3E426 439,672
Amounts due to
shareholder [note 19,2 1,710,324 1488926 1,667, 826 1,488,926
Amounts due to other related
companies (note 19.2) 271,404 721,070 18,6580 121,071

5,115,206 4,635,003 5,058,857 5,072,338

Mote 19.1: The group is expected to enter into an agreement with CFR to settle the outstanding indirect
faxation through a repayment schedule. Following the execution of this agreement, the amounts falling
due after mare than one year will then be disclosed as non-current liabilities, This is expected o change
the present net current liability position of Eurd11,979 1o a net current asset position.

Mote 19.2: The amount due to the shareholders, other related companies and subsidiaries are
unsecured, interest free and repayable on demand,
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20,

21,

Cazh and cash equivalents

For the purposes of the cash flow statement, the cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year
camprised of the follawing:

The Group The Company
2025 2024 2025 024
Eur Eur Eur Eur
Cash and bank balances (note) 281,701 215,370 22,947 44,715
Bank overdraft {a45,485) {589,188) [445,475) (581,505)
{163,784) [373,818) (422,528  (537.150)

Related party transactions

Parties are consldered to be related If one party has the ability to control the other party or exercise
significant influence over the party In making financial or operational decisions.

The Company is ultimately owned by Mr, Jean Paul Busuttil and therefore all companies up to the ultimate
beneficial owner, as well as other companies outside the Group which are owned by Mr, Jean Paul Buswttil
are considered to be related parties. Following his demise on 29 June 2025, the Company is now
ultimately owned by Mrs. Maria Mirjam Busuttil and Ms. Sophie Ann Busuttil, Trading transactions
betwesn the companies include items which are normally encountered in a group contaxt,

Luxury Living Technologies Limited is the parent company of the entities listed in Mote 3.

Trensactions with refoted parties

The Company
2025 z024
Eur Eur
Expenditurae
Management fee charged by subsidiary . 45,000
Interest pavable on loan due to subsidiary 400,000 400,000
Rent payable to related parties 70,000 70,000
Loans and Advances
Advances from shareholders 178,900 31,986
Advances tofrepayment by related parties 102,380 122,667
Advances to subsidiary 411,248 414, 778

Year-end balances from related party transactions are disclosed in Motes 14, 17 and 19, Key
management personnel compensation consisting of directors’ remuneration has been disclosed in note
7,
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22,

23,

Contingent liabilities

As gt 30 June 2025, the Company had a guarantee in favour of Luxury Living Finance p.l.c. in relation to
the issue of Eurd, 000,000 5% Secured Bonds 2028,

in addition, the Company also has guaraniees of Ewr2 2,600 held by APS Bank ple,

The company has a precautionary garnishee order in place for an amount of Eurl 964,042 related to the
ongoing litigation with Mediterranean Aviation Company Limited, which the company & currently
contesting,

Finamcial Risk Management

The group and company are exposed 1o credin risk and liquidity risk through its use of financial
insteuments which result from its operating and Investing activities. The Comgpany is not exposed to
currency risk and the directors consider interest rate risk exposure to be minimal due to fixed interest
rates stipulated on knterest bearing leabilities. Mote 17 incorporates interest rabes and maturity
information with respect to the Company's main interest-bearing liabilities,

The group's and company's risk management is cogrdinated by the directors and focuses on actively
securing the group’s and company’s short o medium term cach flows by minimizing the exposure to
financial instruments. The most significant financial risks to which the group and company are exposed
to are described Below.

Credlt risk

Financial assets which potentially subject the Company 10 concentrations of credit risk consist trade and
other receivables and cash at bank {MNote 14 and 20},

The Company's cash at bank is placed with high guality financial institutions,

The Company's recenvables consist mamly of trade and other receivables, Customer credit risk is
managed by the Group's management subject 1o the Group’s established policy procedures and contral
relating to customer credit risk management. Credit quality of a customer is assessed based on each
customer's credit limits. Qutstanding customer receivables are regularly monitored. An impairment
analysis is performed at the reporting date on an individual basis. The Group exercises & prudent credit
control palicy. In previgus years, the Company entered into commercial cantracts for the salof of installed
photovaltaic panels. These amounts will be directly repaid through the feed-in-tariffs generated by same
photovoltaic panels, thus credit risk in this respect is limited.

Liguidity risk

The group's and company's exposure to liquidity risk arises from their obligations to mest financial
[iabilities, which comprise principally of borrowings and trade and other payables [Refer to notes 17 and
19). Prudent liquidity risk management includes maintaining sufficient cash and committed credit

facilities to ensure the availability of an adequate amaunt of funding to meet the company’s abligations
when they become due.

At 30 June 2025 and 30 June 2024, the contractual materities on the financial Habilities of the growp were
as summarised below. Contractual maturities reflect gross cash flows, which may differ from the carrying
values of financial kabilivies at the date of the consolidated statement of financial position,
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23, Financial Risk Management [cont.)

Liguwidity risk {cont.]

Az ot 30 june 2023 The Group The Company
Currant Won«eunnsnt Currant Marn-curren]
Witkle 1 year 115 § yoars Withim 1 yaar 1 b 5 yoars
Eur Eur Eur Eur
Borrowings 2,608,568 E 774,453 2,309,684 8,271,003
Finance liabilities 130,895 1,657,238 125,800 1.376,787
Trade and other payables 2426007 - 4,134,915 -
&, 166,470 10,471,691 B,670,399 9,847,784

As at 30 June 2024 The Group The Compamy
Currani Hon-current Cureent Mai-carrani
Wiikin 1 yoar 1 to 5 yoars Within 1 yaar 1t & yoars
Eur Eur Eur Eur
Borrowings 3,045 920 Ba73 7392 2 B35.B63 8,450,245
Finance liabilitees 128,234 1,827,281 123,405 1,702,435
Trade and other payables 2,365,084 - 2545546 -
5,535,238 10,801,773 5905214 10,153,681

Foreign Currency risk

Mostof the group’s and company’s [ransactions are carried out in Euro. Exposure 1o currency exchange
rates arise from the group’s and company’s transactions in forelgn currencies.
The company’s financial assets face minimal foreign currency risk since all sabes are made receivable in

Ewro,

interest rale rigk

The group's and company's exposure 1o Interest rate risk 5 Nmited to the variabie interest rates on
borrowings. Based on observations of current market conditions, the directors consider an upward or
downward movement in interest of 1% to be reasonably possible. However, the potential impact of
such a movement i considered immaterial.

24. Capital management policies and procedures

The group and the company's capital management objectives are to ensure their ability 1o continug as
a going contérn and to provide an agequate return to sharehoalders by pricing cormmaeansurately with the
level of risk, and maintaining an optimal capital structure 1o reduce The cost of capital. The group and
the company monitor the level of debt, which includes borrowings and trade and other payablas less
cash and cash equivalents, against totzl capital on an ongoing basis.

25, Events after the reporting date

N further adjusting or significant non-adjusting events have occurced, between the end of the
reporting vear and the date of authorisation of these financial statements by the directors,



LUXURY LIVING TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED SCHEDULE 1,
Cost of sales
For the year ended 20 June 2025
The Group The Company
30 Junm 25 30 Jun 24 30 Jun 25 30 Jun 24
Eur Eur Eur Eur
Cost of Sales
Dpening inventorny 2,225 686 1,837,776 2,136,348 1,762,741
Add purchases 536,060 498,816 152,841 390,168
Transfer of inventory - - (733,340) .
Less closing inventary {2,294,166) (2.225686] (1,512,952}  (3,135348)
467,580 110,926 43 897 25,561
Durect costs
Gross wages and 55 contributions 710,278 185,617 - .
Depreciation . 53 865 - 53,865
Other direct costs = 136,719 - 60,459
Water and electricity 19,167 - =
710,278 3B5,368 - 114,324
Total cost of sales 1,177 858 456,294 42,987 135,885




LUXURY LIVING TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED SCHEDULE 2.

Administrative and other expenses
For the year ended 30 June 2025

The Group The Company

30 Jun 25 30 Jun 24 30 Jun 25 30 Jun 24

Eur Eur Euir Eur

Sudit fee 16,650 15,765 5,330 5,504
Advertising and promotion 2,510 1.471 260 2,248
Bank and other charges 47 1,855 357 1,196
Commissions - 55,885 - =
Directors’ remuneration 138,825 115,898 130,824 98,1938
Fines - 1.000 - =
General expenges 55425 24,655 36,208 22,230
Gross wages and 55 contribution 57,199 504,656 57,168 485,526
Insurance 19,711 41,792 18,081 38,484
Computer expenses 32,001 16,757 30,424 26,128
Management fee - . . B0,000
Mator vehicle expenses 70,126 56,029 22,3585 45,088
Office expenses 18,681 16,208 15,566 14,754
Prafessional fees 33,526 75,098 ET.004 31,544
Registration fee = 3,37 - 2,516
Reapairs and malntenance - 8,264 - 8116
Telecommunications 9,746 11,097 5,092 8844
Travelling and entertainment 1,404 3,035 1,400 2,133
Water and electricity - 27,0495 . 27,000

456,B45 991,920 370,289 479,503




